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MAGGlE M. SCHULTZ 
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GOVERNMENTAL CONSULTANTS 

MARGARET A. MENDUN1 

M. LANE STEPHENS 

RE: Docket No. 040952-WS - Joint Application for Approval of Sale of Florida Water 
Services Corporation’s Land, Facilities, and Certificates for its Chuluota Systems in 
Seminole County to Aqua Utilities Florida, Inc. 

Dear MA. Bayo: 

Enclosed for filing in the above-referenced docket on behalf of Florida Water Services 
Corporation (“Florida Water”) and Aqua Utilities Florida, Inc. (“Aqua Utilities”) are the original and 
four copies of the following documents: 

Aqua America, Inc.3 2003 Annual Report; and 

A statement of commitiiient from Aqua Amei-ica, Inc. indicating that it will fund and 
financially support Aqua Utili ties to become a self-sufficient corporation. 

e c ~  This infomation is being provided in response to Patti Daniel’s letter dated September 23, 
2004 requesting additional information in the above-referenced docket. 

ope I-- 
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Please acknowledge receipt o f  these documents by stamping the extra copy of this letter 
“filed” and returning the copy to me. Thank you for your assistance with this filing. 

Sincerely, 

KAH/tls 
Enclosures 

cc: Melissa Taylor, Esq. (wlenclosures) 
Kathy Pape, Esq. (w/enclosures) 
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Operating revenues (a) . . . . . . . . . . . .  .$ 367,233 
Net income available to 
common stock (a) (b) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .70,785 
Diluted net income per common 
share (a) (b) (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .0.79 
Annual dividend rate per 
common share (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .0.48 
Dividends paid per 
common share (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .0.456 
Common stockholders' equity 
per share (c) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .7.11 
Stockholders' equity . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .659,030 
Total assets (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .2,069,736 
Net cash flows f rom 
operating activities (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  -143,373 
Capital additions (a) (d) . . . . . . . . . . . . .  .163,320 
Number of customers served . . . . . . . . .  .749,491 

$ 322,028 

67,154 

0.78 

0.448 

0.43 

5.80 
493,097 

1,717,069 

121 , 560 
136,164 
605,474 

14.0 

5.4 

1.3 

7.1 

6.0 

22.6 
33.7 
20.5 

17.9 
19.9 
23.8 

Beginning August 1, 2003, the financial results for t h e  operations 
acquired in the Aquasource acquisition have been included in Aqua 
America's consoiidated financial statements. 
2002 amounts include a net gain of $3,690 or $0.04 per share on the sale of a 
portion of our Ashtabula, Ohio water system. 
Restated for  2003 5-for-4 stock split. 
Excludes payments for acquired water and wastewater systems: $1 92,331 
in 2003 and $8,914 in 2002. 
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Chairman's Message 

AQUA 
America. 

March 19, 2004 

Dear Shareholder: 

On Friday, January 16 we celebrated our name change to  Aqua America, incand our 
ticker symbol change to  WTR by ringing The Closing BellTM on the New York Stock 
Exchange. We also hosted a financial analyst day to coincide with the event. After 
more than 100 years of growth under our old name, it was time to  have a name that 
better reflected our new national footprint and our position as the largest publicfy- 
traded water utility based in the US. Overall, however, this change is simply new 
wrapping on the same strong management team that wilt use the same core strategy 
to position our company for continued growth a t  Aqua America. 

The overriding theme for 2003 was growth as we added more than 20 percent to  our 
customer base, primarily through the Aquasource acquisition, which closed on luly 31, 
2003. The Aquasource acquisition furthered our growth-through-acquisition strategy, 
supporting our goal of perpetuating the company's revenue and earnings growth. The 
acquisition also provided us with greater geographic and regulatory diversity with 
entry into several new states, including faster-growing southern states. 

Last year, growth a t  Aqua America was not limited to  the number of customers we 
served. Aqua America shareholders experienced a 34 percent stock price appreciation, 
and a 37 percent total return if their dividends were reinvested. Consistent with our 
long-term commitment to increasing shareholder value, on December 1, 2003 we 
effected our  thirteenth dividend increase in 12 years. We raised our annual dividend 7.1 
percent to an annual rate of $0.48 per share (split-adjusted) to share the benefits of the 
company's increased earnings with our shareholders. We also completed a five-for-four 
stock split that was effected in the form of a 25 percent stock distribution in December. 

Full year revenues grew 14.0 percent to $367.2 million over 2002 revenue of $322.0 
million. This increase was driven by customer growth through acquisitions, as well as 
rate relief in several of the states where we operate. In addition to  the Aquasource 
acquisition, we completed another 17 acquisitions and growth ventures in our various 
other operating locations. The more than 20 percent growth in 2003 could be viewed 
as the equivalent of five years of normal growth in a single year. 

Additionally, we announced our agreement to  acquire the water and wastewater 
operations of Heater Utilities, Inc. in North Carolina. We will add approximately 50,000 
new customers with this acquisition and gain the enhanced status of being the largest 
investor-owned water utility in the fast-growing state of North Carolina. Pending 
regulatory approval, we expect this agreement to close in mid-2004. 

While customer growth drove revenues to record levels, challenging weather in our 
primary service areas dampened our top line performance throughout the typically 
high-demand spring and summer months of 2003. Several of our locations experienced 
rainfall over twice the normal levels coupled with unseasonably cool temperatures. 
Though we were able to grow in spite of the unfavorable weather, we look forward to 
the return of more normal weather patterns in 2004 to enhance our top line performance. 

For the full year 2003 we reported $70.8 million in net income ($0.79 per share), an 
increase of 5.4 percent over 2002 net income of $67.2 million ($0.78 per share). It is 
important to  note for comparative purposes that 2002's fourth quarter and full year 
net income per share figures included a $0.04 one-time gain from the sale of our 
Ashtabula County, Ohio water system. 

Last year, Standard & Poor's affirmed the A+ credit rating on Aqua America's largest 
operating subsidiary Aqua Pennsylvania, indicating that the Aquasource acquisition 
improved our consolidated business profile. The recapitalization associated with the 
Aquasource acquisition included the issuance of $135 million in unsecured long-term 
debt on July 31, 2003 a t  4.87 percent and the sale of five million shares (split- 
adjusted) of common stock a t  $1 8.72 (split-adjusted) through an offering completed 
on August 21, 2003. 
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.. Throughout the year, we continued to take advantage of historically low interest rates. Through the effective use of 

new low cost debt and refinancing, Aqua America's average interest rate for new long-term borrowings during 
2003 was less than 4.8 percent. 

We also off iciafly closed the books on our connection to Veolia Environnement (formerly Vivendi Environnement) 
last year by conducting a secondary offering to  set1 the shares that we purchased (at a lower price) during Veolia's 
2002 divestiture of i t s  16.8 percent interest in Aqua America. The 1.869 million shares (split-adjusted) were 
redistributed in a secondary offering last May to a diverse group of predominantly retail shareholders. 

A key factor in our core strategy is  operating excellence. Like other publicly-traded companies, we continue to face 
higher expenses associated with rising pension and other postretirement costs, as well as increasing professional 
fees due to the new Sarbanes-Oxley regulations. We also have a new, higher cost structure due to our acquired 
Aquasource properties which are more decentralized than the historically more concentrated operations in our 
northern U.S. service areas. Our 2003 operating and maintenance expenses were above 2002 levels primarily due to 
the addition of the AquaSource operations. Without Aquasource, expenses were up 3.7 percent, predominantly 
driven by increased pension and other postretirement benefit costs. 

Although we inherited the higher operating expense model from the Aquasource operations, we were successful in 
holding the line on operating expenses over which we had direct control a t  our other subsidiaries. Several key 
union contracts were renegotiated and now all employees are sharing in the cost of health care coverage. We are 
committed to improving our expense ratio by identifying economies of scale within our newly-expanded 
operations. Synergies from the acquisition have begun to be realized and the integration of our new operations is 
ahead of schedule. Going forward, we plan to take costs out of our operations to  continue to improve our 
e ff i c i  e nc y, w h i I e ma i n t a  i n i n g re I i a b i I it y. 

Utility reliability became the new focus of regulators and the general population after the electricity blackout in the 
Northeast in August 2003. We are pleased to report that throughout the blackout, none of our customers were 
without water. We remain committed to providing quality, reliable service to our customers. 

We believe that mounting demands for reliable service, coupled with progressively more stringent €PA standards, 
will continue to drive consolidation among the more than 50,000 community water systems in the  U.S. With our 
strong balance sheet and sound historical financial performance, we continue to  believe that we are uniquely 
positioned to profitably capitalize on this consolidation by executing our growth-through-acquisition strategy. 

This year, one of our esteemed board members, Alan Hirsig - a seasoned business professional - will retire. We 
express our gratitude to Mr. Hirsig for his faithful service on our board since 1997. Mr. Hirsig served through two of 
the largest acquisitions in the company's history - the Consumers Water Company merger in 1999, and the most 
recent acquisition of the Aquasource water and wastewater utilities in July 2003. This period represents a pivotal 
time in our history that transitioned Aqua America from a single state company to the largest US.-based publicly- 
traded water utility. We thank Mr. Hirsig for his dedicated service and wish him success during his retirement. 

Finally, a t  the core of any company's success is i t s  workforce, and Aqua America benefits from employing many 
excellent people. A special thanks to all of our employees for their continued dedication and hard work that 
allowed us to post another record year. 

Sincerely, 

Nicholas DeBenedictis 

AQJA 
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Increased cash dividend by 7.1 percent to $0.38 (split - 
adjusted) on an annualized basis as of December 1, 2003 

13 cash dividend increases in t he  last 12 years 

Dividends paid for 59 consecutive years 

Effected a five-for-four stock split in the form of a 
stock distribution on December 1, 2003 

Issued five stock splits in the last eight years 
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AQUA AMERICA, mc. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This report by Aqua America, Inc. (ccAqua America,” ‘%e” or “us”) contains, in addition to historical 
idormation, forward-looking statements within the m e w  of the Private Securities Litigation Refom Act of 
1995. These forwad-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors, many of which axe outside 
our control, that may cause out: actud results, performance or achievements to be materially different from any 
future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements. In some 
cases you can iden$ forward-loohg statements where statements are preceded by, followed by or include the 
words ‘(believes,” “expects,” ‘canticipates,” “plans,” c‘ fu~e , ’ ’  ‘‘p~tmtial” or the negative of such terms or sunilar 
expressions. Forward-looking statements in this rep03 include, but are not h t e d  to, statements regarding 

dividend payment projections; 

future financing plans; 

future pension contributions; 

acquisition-related costs and synergies; 

general economic condtions. 

recovery of capital expenditures and expenses in rates; 

projected capital expenditures and related funding requirements; 

opportunities €or future acquisitions and success of pending acquisitions; 

the capacity of our water supplies and facilities; and 

Because forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, there are important factors that could 
cause actual results to differ materially &om those expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements, 
including but not limited to: 

0 

0 

e 

e 

changes in general economic, business and financial market cond~tions; 

changes in government regulations and policies, includmg public utillty regulations and policies; 

changes in environmental conditions, including those that result in water use restrictions; 

abnormal weather conditions; 

changes in capital requirements; 

changes in our credit rating; 

our ability to integrate businesses, technologies or services which we may acquire; 

our ability to manage the expansion of  our business; 

the extent to which we are able to develop and market new and improved services; 

unanticipated capital requirements; 

increasing difficulties in obtaining insurance and increased cost of insurance; 

AQUA 
America. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANUYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND FESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

cost overruns relating to improvements or the expansion of our operations; and 

civil disturbance 01: terroristic threats or acts. 

Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these €orward-looking statements. 
You should read this report with the understanding that OUT actual fbture results may be materially different 
from what we expect. These €orward-looking statements represent our estimates and assumptions only as of 
the date of this report. Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material information under the federal 
securities laws, we are not obligated to update these €orward-looking statements, even though our situation 
may change in the future. We quali@ all of o w  forward-looking statements by these cautionary statements. 

GENERAL INFORJMATION 

Name Change 

On January 16,2004, we changed our name from Philadelphia Suburban Corporation to Aqua Arnexica, 
Inc. The new name better represents ow expanded service territory and reflccts our position as the hrgest US.- 
based publicly-traded water ut&ty. In addtion, we have changed OUT ticker symbol horn PSC to W"R on the New 
York Stock Exchange and Phdadelphia Stock Exchange effective as of the opening of trading on january 20,2004. 

Overview 

Aqua America, Inc. is the holding company for reguiated &itties providing water or wastewater services to 
approximately 2.5 d o n  people in Pennsylvania, Ohio, Illinois, Texas, New Jersey, Indiana, Virgima, Florida, 
North Carolina, Maine, Mssomi, New York, South Carolina and Kentucky+ Our largest operating subsidiary, Aqua 
Pennsylvania, Inc. - formerly Pennsylvania Suburban Water Company, accounts for approximately 60% of ow 
operating revenues and provides water or wastewater services to approximately 1.3 milkon residents in the 
suburban areas north and west of the City of Philadelphia and in 19 other counties in Pennsylvania. Our other 
subsidmies pxovide slmilat: services in 13 other states. In addition, we provide water and wastewater service 
through operating and maintenance contracts with municipal authorities and other parties close to our operating 
companies' service territories. \Ve are the lxgest US.-based publicly-traded water utrlity based on number of 
people served. 

The mission of the investor-owned water u&ty industry is to provide quality and reliable water service at 
an affordable price for the customer, and provide a fair retum to its shareholders. A number of challenges face the 
industry, including 

strict environmental, health and safe7 standards; 
the need €or substantial capital investment; 
economic regulation by Iocal and/or state government; and 
the impact of weather and drought condrtions on water sales demand. 

Aqua America, Inc. strives to achieve the industry mission by ef€ective planning and efficient use of its 
resources to meet the industry chdenges. We maintain a rate case management capability to provide timely and 
adequate returns on the. capital investments that we make in improving or replacing water mains, treatment plants 
and other infrastructure. T h i s  factor is important in our continued profitability and in providing a f'nir return to our 
shareholders, and thus providing access to capital markets to help fund these investments. Often these utility 
investments are required by a changed federal or state environmental standard, to improve out: abdity to deliver 
quality customer service, or to assist in our abrllty to supply water in sufficient quantities for hture demand or when 

A C U A  
America 



AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL;YSZS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
experiencing drought conditions. A strategy to meet the above challenges is tu actively explore opportunities to 
expand our utility opexations through acquisitions of water and wastewater utilities either in areas adjacent to our 
existing semice areas or in new service areas. This growth-through-acquisition strategy allows us to operate more 
efficiently and provides an important source of growth. The ability to successuy execute these strategies and meet 
the industry challenges is largely due to our qualified and traitled workforce, which we strive to retain by treating 
employees fairly and providing our employees with development and growth opportunities. 

We believe that acquisitions will continue to be an important source of growth €or us. With more than 
50,000 commuflity water systems in the U.S., 84% of which serve less than 3,300 customers, the water industry is 
the most fragmented of the major utility industries (telephone, natural gas, electric, water and wastewater). In the 
states were we operate, we believe there are over 22,000 public water systems of widely v w g  size, with the 
majority of the population being served by government-owned water systems. 

Although not as fragmented as the water industry, the wastewater industry in the U.S. also presents 
opportunities for consolidation. According to the US. EnvironmentaI Protection Agency's (EVA) most recent 
survey of publicly-owned wastewater treatment fadties in 2000, there are approximately 16,000 such facilities in the 
nation serving approximately 72% of the U.S. population. The remaining population represents individual 
homeowners with their own treatment €acilities; for example, c o r n m ~ ~  on-lot d~sposd systems and septic tank 
systems. The vast majority of wastewater fachties are government-owned rather than privatdy-owned. The EPA 
survey also indicated that there are approximately 6,800 wastewater facihties in operation or planned in the 14 states 
where we operate. 

Because of the fragmented nature of the water and wastewater utrlity industries, we believe that there are 
many potential water and wastewater system acquisition candidates throughout the United States. We believe the 
factors driving the consolidation of these systems are: 

increasingly stingent environmental regulations; 
the benefits of economies of scale; 

the need for capital investment; and 
the need for technological and managerial expertise. 

On July 31,2003, we completed the acquisition of four operating water and wastewater subskliaries of 
Aquasource, Inc., a subsidiary of DQE, Inc., including selected, integrated operating and maintenance contracts and 
related assets, €or $190,717 in cash, as adjusted and subject to h t h e r  adjustment pursuant to the purchase 
agreement. The acquired operations of Aquasource serve over 130,000 water and wastewater customer accounts in 
11 states; including- the Connecticut operations whch we sold in October 2003. The operating results of 
AquaSource have been included in our consolidated financial statements beginning August I, 2003. 

On November 21,2003, we entered into a purchase agreement with ALLEX Water Services, Inc., a 
subsidmy of ALLETE$ Inc., to acquire the capital stock of Heatex Utilities, Inc., which owns water and wastewater 
systems located in North Carolina. ' f i e  purchase agreement provides for a cash purchase price of $48,000 and the 
assumption of approximately $28,000 in debt, reflecting an acquisition premium of approximately $18,000. We 
intend to seek the ability to recovel: a portion of this premium through customer rates via the North Cwoha 
Udities Commission approval process. " h e  acquisition, which is subjcct to regulatory approval, is expected to 
close in mid-2004. Tlas acquisition will add approximately 50,000 customers in the areas of suburban Raleigh, 
Charlotte, Gastonia and Fayetteville, North Carolma. 

ACUA 
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AQUA AMERICA, ING. AND SUBSIDLARIES 

MANAGEMENT'S DrscussroN AND ANALYSTS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

We are actively exploring other opportunities to expand our water and wastewater utility operations 
through acquisitions or otherwise, We intend to continue to p.usue acquisitions of municipally-owned and 
investor-owned water and wastewater systems of all sizes that provide services in areas adjacent to our existing 
service territories or in new service areas. 

Following are our selected fiveyeat financial statistics: 

Years ended December 31, 2003 (a) 2002 2001 2000 1999 

Operating revenues 367,233 $ 322,028 $ 307,280 95 274,014 $ 256,546 

Net income availabIe to 

common stock $ 70,785 $ 67,154 $ 60,005 $ 52,784 $ 36,275 

non-recurring items (b> $ 70,785 $ 63,464 $ 60,005 $ 50,548 $ 44,871 

Income from operations before 

Operating Statistics 
Selected operating results as a 

percentage of operating revenues: 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Taxes other than income taxes 
Interest expense, net 
Allowance for funds used during 

construction 

38.3% 
14.0% 
5.9% 

12.2% 

(0.6) ?40 

36.6% 
13.8% 
6.0% 

12.5% 

(0.4) Yo 

36.4% 
13.1% 
6.8% 

11.9% 

(0.4) '/o 

37.1 %o 

12.4% 
8.2% 

12.9% 

(1 . o y o  

38*5% 
1 2.4% 
8.5% 

12.9% 

(O.8)% 
Net income available to 

common stock 19.3°/0 20.9% 19.5% 19.3% 14.1% 
Effective tax rates 39.3% 38.5% 39.3% 39.2% 42.2% 

Income €ram operations before non-recurring items is a measure that is not determined in accordance with 
generally acceptcd accounting principles (GAAP) and may not be comparable to sirmlarly titled measures 
reported by other cornpallies. This Non-GAAP measure should not be considered as an alternative to net 
income as determined in accordance with GAAP. We believe that this is useful as an inchcator of operating 
performance, as we measure it for management purposes, because it provides a better understanding of our 
results of operations by highlighting our ongoing operations and the underlying profitability of o w  core 
business. 
(a) 2003 includes five months of fmancial results €or the operations acquired in the Aquasource acquisition. 
@) Non-recurring items represent the 2002 gain of $3,690 ($5,676 pre-tax) realized on the sale of a portion 
of our Ashtabula, Ohio water system, the 2000 gain of $2,236 ($4,041 pre-tax) for the partial recovery of the 
merger costs related to the 1999 merger with Consumers Water Company, and the 1909 charges of $8,596 
($10,121 pre-tax) for transaction costs and restructuring costs related to the merger with Consumers Water 
Company. 

AQJUA 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
We consider the following nonfinancial measure and h a n d  measures to be the fundamental basis by 

which we evaluate our performance: number of customers, operating revenues, net income and our dividend rate 
on common stock. In addition, we consider other key financial measures in evaluating our operating results: the 
ratio of operations and maintenance expense compared to operating revenues (fhis percentage is termed 
<‘operating expense ratio”); return on revenues (net income divided by operating revenues); and eamings before 
interest, taxes, depredation and amortization. These measurements are reviewed regularly and compared to 
historical periods as well as our operating budget as approved by the Aqua America, I C .  Board of Directors. 

Our operating expense ratio is one measure that we use to evaluate our operating efficiency and 
management effectiveness. As reported in the above table and as anticipated, our operakg expense ratio 
increased for 2003 as compared to 2002 as a result of the additional operating casts associated with the 
AquaSource acquisition which dosed on July 31,2003. The business model of the acquired AquaSource 
operations is different from the rest of the Aqua America operations. The AquaSource operations are comprised 
of approximately 600 small systems, which are generally clustered in regions to achieve some level of operating 
efficiency. However, the fragmented nature of the AquaSource operations results in the additional operating 
revenues generated by the AquaSource operations being accompanied by a higher ratio of operations and 
maintenance expenses than the level Aqua America experiences in the rest of the Aqua America operations. The 
AquaSource opetations can be characterized as having relatively-hgher fixed operating costs in contrast to the rest 
of the Aqua America operations which generally have €ewer, but Ja.rger, interconnected systems resulting in higher 
fixed capital costs (utility plant investment) per customer. For the twelve-month period ending June 30,2003, the 
last reporting period before the July 31,2003 closing of AquaSource, our operating expense ratio declined to 
36.5%, from 36.6*/0 for the year ended December 31,2002. The operating results of AquaSource have been 
included in our consolidated financial statements beginnrng August 1,2003. We are implementing management 
systems over time that will allow us to further control costs and improve efficiencies, but the effect of this 
acquisition d be to increase our overall operating expense ratio in 2004 from the levels experienced during the 
past five years. Consequently, we anticipate our return on revenues, net income chided by operating revenues, to 
be lower in 2004 than in the past four years as a result of the impact of the AquaSource operations. 

Following are our selected five-year operating and sales statistics: 

Years ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 2000 1799 

Customers 

Operating 
Revenues (a) 

Residential water 624,355 535,506 526,776 512,442 497,937 
Commercial water 33,015 30,355 29,745 29,3 17 29,241 
Industrial water 1,397 1,423 1,454 1,446 1,430 
Other water 20,483 16,466 9,947 9,500 9,067 
Wastewater 70,241 21,724 19,615 12,441 1 1,262 
Total 749,49 1 605,474 587,537 565,146 548,937 

Residentialwater $ 218,487 $ 197,190 $ 188,303 170,597 8 154,881 
Commercial water 61,343 55,962 53,103 47,209 45,192 
Industrial water 17,675 17,221 16,141 14,943 13,944 
0 h e r  water 40,048 36,25 5 35,681 29,582 31,999 
Wastewater 17,874 8,210 6,960 5,414 5,235 
0 ther 1 1.806 7.190 7.092 6.369 5.295 
Total 367,233 $ 322,028 3 307,280 $ 274,014 $ 256,546 

(a) 2003 includes five months of financial results for the operations acquired in the Aquasource acquisition. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL, CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) , 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Our net income has grown at an annual compound rate of approximately 9.6% during the five-year period 
ended December 31,2003. During this same period, operating revenues grew at a compound rate of 7.9% and 
t o d  expenses, exclusive of income taxes, grew at a cornpound rate of XI%. 

Operatkc Revenues 

The growth in revenues over the past five years is a result of increases in both the customer base and in 
water rates. The number of customers increased at an annual compound rate of7.3% in the past five years 
primarily as a result of acquisitions of water and wastewater systems, includmg the Aquasource acquisition 
completed July 31,2003. Acquisitions made during the five-year period ended December 31,2003 have provided 
water and wastewater revenues of approximately $41,368 in 2003, $14,246 in 2002 and $11,157 in 2001. Excluding 
the effect of acquisitions, our customa base increased at a five-year mud compound rate of 0.9%. Rate 
increases implemented during the past three years have provided additional operating revenues of approximately 
$19,900 in 2003, $14,700 in 2002 and $13,100 in 2001. In addition to water and wastewater operating revenues, we 
had other non-regulated revenues that were primarily associated with operating and maintenance contracts, and 
data processing service fees of $11,806 in 2003, $7,190 in 2002 and $7,092 in 2001. The increase in 2003 resulted 
from the additional revenues for contract operations of $3,743, for five months, associated with theJuly 31,2003 
acquisition of AquaSource. 

Econumic lQgdzizon - Most of our water and wastewater utility opetations are subject ta tegulation by their 
respective state regulatory commissions, which have broad administrative power and authority to regulate rates and 
charges, determine franchise areas and conc3iltions of service, approve acquisitions and authorize the issuance of 
securities. Some of om operations are subject to rate regulation by county or city government. The  profitability of 
our uthty operations is influenced a great extent by the timehess and adequacy of rate allowances in the various 
states in which we operate. Accordingly, we maintain a rate case management capabiiity to provide that the tariffs 
of the utility operations reflect, to the extent practicable, the timely recovery of increases in costs of operations, 
capital, taxes, energy, materials and compliance with environmental regulations. In assessing OUT rate case strategy, 
we consider the mount of utihty plant additions and replacements made since the previous rate decision, the 
changes in the cost of capital, changes in the capital structure and changes in other casts. Based on these 
assessments, our utlltty operations periodtcally €de rate increase requests with their respective state regulatory 
commissions. 

In November 2003, our Pennsylvania operating subsidmy fled an application with the Pennsylvania Public 
Utility Commission (PAPUC) requesting a $25,300 or 10.2% increase in annual revenues. The application is 
currently pendtng be€oore the PAPUC and a final determination is anticipated by August 2004. On August 1,2002, 
the PAPUC granted ow Pennsylvania operating subsidmy a $21,226 or 10.2% rate increase. The rates in effect at 
the tune of thc f h g  included $9,400 in Distribution System Improvement Charges (DSIC) at 5.0%. 
Consequently, the total base rates increased by $30,626 and the DSIC was reset to zero. 

operating subsichies located in other states were allowed annual rate increases of $1,275 in 2003 resulting 
Gom eight rate decisions, $3,024 in 2002 resulting from thirteen rate decisions and $4,799 in 2001 resdtrng horn 
nine rate decisions. Revenues &om these increases realized in the year of grant were approximately $839 in 2003, 
$1,403 in 2002 and $4,200 in 2001. These operating subsidtaxies currently have aght rate requests in process 
requesting a $7,803 increase in annuaI revenues. These requests are currently under review by the respective state 
regulatory commission. During 2004, we intend to file 16 rate requests requesting an aggregate of approximately 
$17,700 of increased annual revenues. 

&venae Suwhages - Four states in whch we operate permit water utdities, and in some states wastewater u&ties, to 
add a surcharge to their water or wastewater bills to offset the additional depreciation and capital costs associated 



AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
with certain capital expenditures related to replacing and rehabilitating infrastructure systems. Prior to these 
mechanisms being approved, water and wastewater utilities absorbed all of the depreciation and capital costs of 
these projects between base rate increases without the benefit of additional revenues. The gap between the time 
that a capital project is completed and the recovery of its costs k rates is known as regulatory lag. The 
infrastructurc rehabilitation surcharge mechanism is intended to substantially reduce regulatory lag which often 
acted as a disincentive to water and wastewater utilities to rehabilitate their infrastructure. In addition, our 
subsidmies in certain statcs use a surcharge or credit on their bill to reflect certain changes in costs until such time 
as the costs are incorporated in base rates. 

Currently, Pennsylvania, Illinois, Ohio and Indiana allow for the use of infrastructure rehabilitation 
surcharges. In Pennsylvania, this mechanism is referred to as a DSIC. These mechanisms t y p i d y  adjust 
periodically based on additional qualified capital expenditures completed or anticipated in a htwe period. The 
infrastructure rehabilitation surcharge is capped as a percentage of base rates, generally 5% of base rates, and is 
reset to zero when new base rates that reflect the costs of those additions become effective or when a utility’s 
earnings exceed a regulatory benchmark. 
2003, $5,518 in 2002 and $6,671 in 2001. 

Infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges provided revenues of $8,147 in 

Senhut- “Sendout” represents the quantity of treated water delivered to OUT dismbution systems. We use sendout 
as an indicator of customer demand. Weather conditions tend to impact water consumption, particularly in our 
northern service territories dmhg the late spring and summer months when nonessential and recreational use of 
water is at its hghest. Consequently, a higher proportion of annual operating revenues is realized in the second 
and third quarters. In general during this period, an extended period of dry weather increases water consumption, 
whde above average rainfall decreases water consumption. Also, an increase in the average temperature generally 
causes an increase in water consumption. Conservation efforts, construction codes which require the use of low 
flow plumbing fixtures, as well as mandated water use restrictions in response to drought conditions, also affect 
water consumption. 

The geographic diversity of our customer base reduces our exposure to extreme or unusual weather 
conditions in any one area of our service territory. Our geographic diversity has continued to widen as a result of 
the AquaSouce acquisition which closed on July 31,2003. During the quarter ended December 31,2003, which 
was the hrst quarter containing three months of Aquasource operating results, our operating revenues were 
derived principally from h e  following states: 60% in Pennsylvania, 9% in Ohio, 7% in Illmois, 7% in Texas, 5% in 
New Jerseyt 4% in Indiana, and 3% in Florida. 

On occasion, drought warnings and water use restrictions are issued by gavernmental authorities for 
portions of ow service territories in response to extended periods of dry weathet conditions. The timing and 
duration of the warnings and resttrictions can have an impact on our water revenues and net income. In general, 
water consumption in the summer months is affected by drought warnings and restrictions to a b h e r  degree 
because nonessentd and recreational use of water is highest during the sutnmer months, particularly in OUT 

northern service temtories. At other times of the year, warnings and restrictions generally have Iess of an effect on 
water consumption. In November 2001, a drought warning was declared in nine counties in Pennsylvania, 
including one of the five counties we serve in southeastern Pennsylvania. A drought wantling c d s  for a 10 to 15 
percent voluntary reduction of water use, pwticularly non-essential uses of water. In February 2002, a drought 
emergency was declared in 24 counties in Pennsylvania, includmg all five of the counties we serve in southeastern 
Pennsylvatlla where approximately 275,000 of om customers are located. A drought emergency imposes a ban on 
nonessential water use. In mid-2002, drought restrictions were relaxed in three of the five counties we serve in 
southeastern Pennsylvania, moving &om the mandatory drought emergency to a voluntary drought warning. 
However, by early September 2002, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania reinstated the drought emergency in the 
three counties where restrictions had been relaxed because of hot, dry weather in August. In November and 
December 2002, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania removed the drought restrictions in the counties we serve in 
Pennsylvania. Water use restrictions were also imposed and relaxed at various times during 2002 in our service 
territories in NewJersey. Currently there are no drought warnings or restrictions in any of the areas we serve. 
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AQUA AhIERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCLAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 

Operations and Maintenance Expenses 

Operations and maintenance expenses totaled $140,602 in 2003, $1 17,735 in 2002 and $111,885 in 2001. 
Most elements of operating costs are subject to the effects of inflation, as well as the effects of changes in the 
number of customers served, in water consumption and the degree o€water treament required due to variations 
in the quality of the raw water. The principal elements oE operating costs are labor and employee benefits, 
electricity, chemicals, maintenance expenses and insurance costs. Eiectriuty and chemical expenses vary in 
relationship to water consumption, raw water quahty, and to a lesser extent the competitive electric market in some 
of the states in which we operate. Maintenance expenses are sensitive to extremely cold weather, which can cause 
water mains to rupture. Operations and maintenance expenses increased in 2003 as compared to 2002 by $22,867 
01: 19.4% due to additional operating costs associated with acquisitions of $18,526, primarrly from Aquasource, 
htgher postretirement costs, and additional maintenance costs, offset in part by reduced bad debt expense. The 
postretirement benefits expense increase resulted principally from lagher pension costs and increased retiree 
medical costs. The increased maintenance expenses are primatrily a result of additional main break repairs resulting 
from the relatively harsh winter weather experienced in early 2003 in ow northern service territory. 

Operations and maintenance expenses increased in 2002 as compared to 2001 by $5,850 or 5.2% due to 
additional operating costs associated with acquisitions, transaction costs related to planned and completed 
acquisitions, kcteased insurance expense, hgher bad debt expense and increased wages as a result of normal wage 
rate increases. 

Depreciation and Amortization Exnenses 

Depreciation expense was $48,522 in 2003, $41,424 in 2002 and $37,979 jn 2001, and has increased 
principally as a result of the slgruficant capital expenditures made to expand and improve the utlllty facilities, and as 
a result of acquisitions of water systems. 

Amortization expense was $2,941 in 2003, $2,898 in 2002 and $2,189 in 2001. The increase in 2003 and 
2002 is due to the amortization of the costs associated with, and other costs being recovered in, various rate fhngs. 
Expenses associated with tiling rate cases are deferred and amortized over periods that generally range from one to 
three years. 

Taxes Other than Income Taxes 

Taxes other than income taxes increased by $2,140 or 11.0% in 2003 as compared to 2002, and decreased 
by $1,420 or 6.8% in 2002 as compared to 2001. The increase in 2003 is due to additional taxes associated with 
the AquaSource acquisition and additional state taxes, The decrease in 2002 is due to a reduction in state taxes and 
a decrease in the Pennsylvania Capital Stock Tax. The decrease in state taxes is a result o€ a reduction in 
assessments and the Capital Stock Tax declined due to a reduction in the base on which the tax is applied and a 
legislated decrease in the tax rate. 

Interest Expense. net 

Net interest expense was $44,662 in 2003, $40,396 in 2002 and $39,859 in 2001. Interest income of $395 in 
2003, $287 in 2002 and $367 in 2001 was netted a p s t  interest expense. Interest expense increased in 2003 and 
in 2002 primarily as a result of lugher levels of borrowings, offset partially by the c€fects of decreased interest rates 
on borrowings, The higher level of borrowings in 2003 was used to fmance the acquisition of Aquasource and 
capital expenditures. 2002 borrowing levels increased principally to h d  capital expenditures. Interest expense 
during 2003 was favorably impacted by a reduction in the weighted cost of long-term debt &om 6.56% at 
December 31,2002 to 6.19% at December 31,2003. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction 

The allowance for h d s  used dunng construction (AFUDC) was $2,127 in 2003, $1,389 in 2002 and 
$1,222 in 2001 and has varied over the years as a result of changes in the average balance of utility plant 
construction work in progress (CW"), to which AFUDC is applied, and to changes in the AmJDC rate. The 
increase in 2003 is due to an increase in the A m C  rate as a result of tax-exempt borrowings for ow multi-year 
infrastructure rehabilitation plan and an increase in the average balance of CWLP. The increase in 2002 is a result 
of an increase in the average balance of CWIP to which AFUDC is applied, offset in part by a decrease in the 
AFiUDC rate which is based on short-term interest rates. 

Gain on Sale of Water System 

Gain on sale of water system represents the gain realized on the December 2002 sale of a portion of the 
Ashtabula, Ohio water system to the county government The sale provided $12,118 of net proceeds and resulted 
in a fourth quarter 2002 pre-tax gain of $5,676. 

Gain on Sale of Other Assets 

Gain on sale of other assets totaled $5,692 in 2003, $2,079 in 2002 and $3,384 in 2001 and consisted of 
gains on land and marketable securities sales. Gain on sale ofland totaled $5,153 in 2003, $900 in 2002 and $3,018 
in 2001. Gain an sale of marketable securities totaled $539 in 2003, $1,179 in 2002 and $366 in 2001. 

Income Taxes 

Our effective income tax rate was 39.3% in 2003,38.5'/0 in 2002 and 39,3% in 2001. The changes in the 
effective tax rates in 2003 and 2002 are due to differences between tax deductible expenses and book expenses* 

Operating income was $153,561 in 2003, $140,504 in 2002 and $134,340 in 2001 and net income available 
to common stock was $70,785 in 2003, $67,154 in 2002 and $G0,005 in 2001. Our operating results were affected 
by a non-recurring item in 2002. Net income for 2002 includes a gam of $5,676 ($3,690 after-tax or $0.04 per 
share) on the sale of a portion of our Ashtabula, Ohio water system. Diluted net income per share was $0.79 in 
2003, $0.78 in 2002 and $.70 in 2001. Diluted income per share exclusive of the aforementioned non-recurring 
items (for 2002, $0.04 per share from the on the sale of water system), was $0.79 in 2003, $0.73 in 2002 and 
$0.70 in 2001. Diluted income per share exclusive of non-recurring items is a measure that is not determined in 
accordance with GAAP and may not be comparable to sirnilarly titled measures reported by other companies. 
l k s  Non-GAAP measure should not be considered as an alternative to net income per share as determined in 
accordance with GAAP. We believe that tiis is usefbl as an indicator of operating performance, as we measure it 
for management purposes, because it provides a better understanding of our results oE operations by highlighting 
our ongoing operations and the underlying profitabihty of our core business. The changes in the per share income 
in 2003 and 2002 over the previous years were due to the aforementioned changes in income and hpacted by a 
3.1% increase in the averagc number of c o r n o n  shares outstanding during 2003 and a 0.7% increase in the 
average number of shares outstandmg during 2002, respectively. The increase in the number of shares outstmdmg 
in 2003 is primarily a result of the additional shares issued in common share offerings and through OUT dwidend 
reinvestment plan and employee stock and incentive plan dut-ing 2003. 

Although we have experienced increased income in the recent past, continued adequate rate increases 
reflecting increased operating costs and new capital investments are important to the hture realization of 
improved profitability. 
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AQUA AMERTCA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

... I__ 

I 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Fourth Quarter Results 

Net income available to common stock was $18,606 in thc fourth quarter of 2003 and $18,646 in the same 
period of 2002. The fourth quarter results of 2002 include a net gain of $3,690 ($5,676 pre-tax) ox $0.04 per share 
on the sale of a portion of our Ashtabula, Ohio water system, The change in net income is due to a $19,386 
increase in operating revenues, a gain on the sale of other assets of $1,278 realized in the fourth quarter of 2OO3, 
and an increase in AFUDC, offset by increased operations and maintenance expense of $1 1,740, depreciation 
expense of $2,134, and the absence in 2003 of the aforementioned gam on the sale of water system of$5,676 
reahzed in 2002. The increase in operating revenues was a result of &e additional revenues horn the Aquasource 
acquisition and an increase in water rates. The gam on sde of other assets is a res& of the sale of marketable 
securities. The increased AFUDC resulted fiom a higher AFUDC rate. 'The higher operations and maintenance 
expense is due primarily to the additional operating costs associated with acquisitions. Depreciation expense 
increased due to acquisitions and utihty plant additions made since the fourth quarter of 2002. 

Effects of Inflation 

As a regulated enteqxise, our rates are established to provide recovery of costs and a return on out: 
investment. Recovery of the effects of inflation through higher water rates is dependent upon receiving adequate 
urd timely rate increases. However, rate increases are not retroactive and ofim lag increases in costs caused by 
inflation. During periods of moderate to low inflation, as has been experienced for the past several years, the 
effects of inflation on our operating results are not sqpificant. 

In ltght of concerns regarding security in the wake of the September 1 I, 2001 terrorist attacks, we 
have increased securiy measures at our facilities. These increased security measures were not made in 
response to any specific threat. We are in contact with federal, state and local authorities and industry trade 
associations regarchng current information on possible threats and security measures for water utility 
operations. The cost of the increased security measures, includmg capital expendttures, is expected to be 
recoverable in water rates and is not cxpected to have a material impact on our results from operations or 
financial condition. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Cash Flow and Capital Expenditures 

Net operating cash flow, dividends paid on c o r n o n  stock, capital expenditures, including allowances for 
funds used dwing construction, and expenditures for acquiring water and wastewater systems for the five years 
ended December 31,2003 were as follows: 

Net Operating Common Capital Acquisitions of 
Cash Flow Dividends Expenltures Utdity Systems 

1799 $ 74,203 $ 29,217 $ 96,383 $ 39,164 
2000 86,972 30,406 129,7 40 3,546 

2002 121,560 36,789 136,164 8,9 14 
2003 143,373 39,917 163,320 192,331 

200 1 102,165 34,234 124,088 9,s 1 7 

$ 528,173 170,563 $ 649,695 $ 253,472 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIAIUIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL, CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
Included in capital expenditures for the five-year period are: expenditures for the modernization and 

replacement of existing treatment plants, new water mains and customer service lines, rehabilitation of 
existing water mains and hydrants, and water meters. During this five-year period, we received $36,570 of 
customer advances and contributions in aid of construction to’ finance new water mains and related facilities 
which are not included in the capital expenditures presented in the above table. In addition, during this 
period, we have madc sinking fund contributions and retired debt in the amount of $110,799, retired $3,220 
of preferred stock, and have refunded $22,697 of customer advances for construction. Common dividends 
increased during the past five years as a res& of an annual increase in the common dividends declared and 
paid and an increase in the shares outstanding during the period. 

Out: planned 2004 capital program, exclusive of the costs of new mains financed by advances and 
contributions in aid of construction, is estimated to be $178,900 of which $49,345 is for infrastructure 
rehabilitation surcharge-q&ed projects. We have increased our capital spendmg for infrastructure rehabditation 
in response to the infrastructure rehabilitation surcharge mechanisms, and should these mechanisms be 
dscontinued for any reason, whch is not anticipated, we would reevaluate the magnitude our capital program. 
Our 2004 capid program, along with $39,386 of sinking €und obhgations and debt maturities, and $28,007 of 
other contractual cash oblgations, as reported in the section captioned “Contractual Obhgations”, is expected to 
be financed through intemally-generated funds, our revolving credit fadties, the issuance of equity and the 
issuance of new long-term debt. 

Future utdity construction in the period 2005 through 2008, includmg reaxring programs, such as the 
ongoing replacement of water meters, water treatment plant upgrades, storage facility renovations, the 
rehabiitation of water mains and addtional transmission mains to meet customer demands, exclusive of the costs 
of new mains financed by advances and contributions in aid of construction, is estimated to require aggregate 
expenditures of approximately $600,000. We anticipate that less than one-half of these expenditures will require 
external financing of debt and the additional issuance oEcommon stock through our dividend reinvestment plan 
and possible hture public equity offerings. We expect to rehance $90,339 of sinking fund obhgatiions and debt 
maturities during this period as they become due with new issues oElong-term debt. The estimates &sassed 
above do not include any amounts for possible future acquisitions of water systems or the financing necessary to 
support them, including the planned Heater acquisition described below. 

Our primary source of liquidity is cash flows from operations, borrowings under various short-term lmes 
of credit and other credit facilities, and advances and contributions in aid o€ construction. Our cash flow &om 
operations, or internally-generated funds, is irnpacted by the timing of rate relief and water consumption. We fund 
our capital and acquisition programs though internally-generated funds, supplemented by short-term boflowings. 
Over time, we refinance our short-term borrowings with long-term debt and proceeds from the issuance of 
common stock. The abillty to finance OUT future construction programs, as well as our acquisition activities, 
depends on our abrlity to attract the necessary external financing and maintain intemally-generated hnds. Rate 
orders permitting compensatory rates of return on invested capital and timely rate adjustments will be required by 
our operating subsidiaries to achieve an adequate level of earnings to enable them to secure the capital they will 
need and to maintain satisfactory debt coverage ratios. 

. 

Acquisitions 

During the past five years, we have expended cash of $253,472 and issued 1,317,017 shares of 
common stock, valued at $16,400 at the time of the acquisition, related to the acquisitions of utility systems, 
primarily water utilities and some wastewater utilities. On July 31,2003, we completed the acquisition of 
four operating water and wastewater subsidiaries of Aquasource, Inc., a subsidiary of DQE, Inc., includrng 
selected, integrated operating and maintenance contracts and related assets (individually and collectively the 
acquisition is referred to as “AquaSource”) for $190,717 in cash, as adjusted pursuant to the purchase 
agreement and subject to further adjustment. The acquisition was initially funded by a portion of the 
proceeds from the July 2003 issuance of $135,000 of unsecured notes due 2023, with an interest rate of 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

4.87%, and the issuance of a $90,000 unsecured note by Aqua America. In August 2003, the $90,000 
unsecured note was repaid with the proceeds from the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock 
through a shelf registration. Please refer to the section captioned “Aquasource Acquisition” which follows. 
These acquisitions were accounted for as purchases. In March 1999, we completed a merger with 
Consumers Water Company (CWC)- On the date of the merger, we issued 25,417,998 shares of Common 
Stock in exchange for all of the outstanding shares of CWC and CWC became our wholly-owned subsidiary. 
The CWC merger has been accounted for as a pooling-of-interests. 

On November 21,2003, we entered into a plKhaSe agreement With ALLE’TE Water Services, Inc., a 
subsidiary of ALLETl3, Inc., to acquire the capid stock of Heater Utilities, Inc., which owns water and wastewater 
systems located in North Carolina. The purchase agreement provides for a cash purchase price of $48,000 and the 
assumption of approximately $28,000 in debt, reflecting an acquisition premium of approximately $18,000. We 
intend to seek the ability to recover a portion of this premium through customer rates via the North Carolma 
Utilities Cornmission approval‘process. ’fie acquisition, which is subject to regulatory approval, is expected to 
close in mid-2004. This acquisition will add approximately 50,000 customers in the areas of suburban Raleigh, 
Charlotte, Gastonia and Fayetteville, N o d  Carolina. It is our intention to fimd the acquisition at closing with 
cash from a combination short-term debt, long-term debt and/or the issuance of out: common stock 

We continue to hold acquisition discussions with several water systems. In general, acquisitions are 
expected to be financed through the issuance of equity (€or the acquisition of some investor-owned systems) or 
funded initially with short-term debt with subsequent repayment from the proceeds of long-term debt or proceeds 
horn equity offerings. 

Disnositions 

In May 2003, we announced agreements for the sale o€ the Aquasource regulated and nonregulated 
operations located in Connecticut and New York to a New England-based water company for an aggregate 
purchase price of $5,000 and the assumption of approximately $800 of debt. The sale of the Conneticut 
operations closed on October 31,2003 and provided proceeds of $4,000. The sale of the New York 
operations is expected to occur in mid-2004. The combined operations in New Yark and Connecticut 
represented approximately 2% of the operations acquired from Aquasource, Inc. We intend to sell other 
minor divisions of the acquired Aquasource operations as we will continue to review and evaluate our areas 
of business and operating divisions. 

In December 2002, as a result of the settlement of a condemnation action, our Ohio operating 
subsidiary sold to Ashtabula County, Oho the water utility assets in the unincorporated areas of Ashtabula 
County and the area within the Village of Geneva on the Lake for net proceeds of $12,118, which was in 
excess of the book value for these assets. The proceeds were used to pay down short-term debt, and the 
sale resulted in the recognition in the fourth quarter of 2002 of a gain on the sale of these assets of $5,676, 
or an after-tax gain of $3,690 and $0.04 per share. We continue to operate this water system for Ashtabula 
County, beginning after the closing of the sale, under a multi-year operating contract that was recently 
renewed and is expected to provide us with over $300 in operating revenues annualIy. The water utility 
assets sold represented less than 1% of our total assets, and the total number of customers included in the 
water system sold represented less than 1% of our total customer base. 

Despite these transactions, our strategy continues to be to acquire addtional water and wastewater 
systems, maintain our existing systems, and actively oppose efforts by municipal governments to acquire any 
of our operations. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Sources of Capital 

Since net operating cash flow plus advances and contributions ifl aid of consmction have not been 
sufficient to fully Eund cash requirements, we issued approximately $462,500 of long-term debt and obtained other 
short-term borrowings during the past five years. At December 31,2003, we had short-term lines of credit and 
other credtt facilities of$178,000, oEwhich $81,541 was available. Our short-term lines of credit and other credit 
fadties are either payable on demand or have a 364-day term. 

In Apd 2003, we filed a universal shelf registration with the SEC to allow for the sale, over time, of up to 
$250,000 of various debt and equity securities, including common stock. To date, we have completed two 
issuances under the universal shelf registration: 

In May 2003, we sold 1,868,750 shares of common stock in a public offering for proceeds of $33,100, net 
oE expenses, The net proceeds were used to repay short-term deb< including the repayment of $2,000 
of indebtedness incurred in connection with our repurchase of 1,513,275 shares of our common stock 
&om afiihates of Veolia Environnement, SA.,  formerly Vivendi Enivironnement, SA., in October 2002. 

In August 2003, we sold 5,000,000 shares of common stock in a public offering ~ O K  proceeds of $90,100, 
net of expenses. The net proceeds were used to repay an unsecured note of $90,000. The indebtedness 
was incurred by Aqua America in connection with the acquisition of the operations that were purchased 
from AquaSource, Inc. 

The balance remaining availabk for use under the universal shelf registration as of December 31,2003 is 
$121,895. In addition, we have a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC to permit the offering kom time 
to time of shares of common stock and shares of preferred stock for acquisitions. During 2003, no shares were 
issued from the acquisition shelf regstration. During 2002 and 2001,178,664 and 414,638 shares of common 
stock totalulg $2,745 and $5,361, were issued to acquire water and wastewater systems. The balance remaining 
available for use under the acquisition shelf rcgstration as of December 31,2003 is 2,218,947 shates. The form 
and terns of such seaxi t ies shall be determined when and if these securities are issued under these shelf 
regstrations. 

In September 2000, we sold 2,583,008 shares of common stock in a public offering for net proceeds of 
$29,689. The proceeds of thrs offering were used to make an equity contribution to our Pennsylvania operating 
subsidmy. 

We offer a Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan (Plan) that provides a convenient and 
economical way to purchase shares of Aqua America, Inc. Under the direct stock purchase portion of the Plan, 
shares are sold throughout the year and the shares are obtained by o w  transfer agent in the open market. The 
dwidend reinvestment portion of the P31m offers a 5% dscount on the purchase of original issue shares of 
common stock with reinvested dividends. As of the December 2003 dividend payment, hdders of 17.0% of the 
comrnon shares outstarihg participated in the dividend reinvestment portion of the Plan, During the past five 
years, we have sold 2,150,474 origmal issue shares of common stock for net proceeds of $29,913 through the 
dividend reinvestment portion of the Plan and the proceeds were used to invest in our operating subsidiaries, to 
repay short-term debt, and for general corporate purposes. 

Other Capital Transactions 

In May 2002, Veolia Environnemen< S.A., formerly Vivendi Environnement, SA., which through its 
affiliates (collectively ‘W’) owned approximately 16.8% of our outstanding common stock, advised us of its 
decision to sell its investment in Aqua America. VE announced that its decision was part of its overall strategy 
to divest non-core assets and focus on other business strateges. In  September 2002, in order to facihtate the 
orderly redistribution of the shares held by VE into the market, we completed a secondary offering of 
12,356,570 shares of Aqua Ameiica common stock held by VE. The number of outstanding shares oE 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEJNENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAlLYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL, CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
c o r n o n  stock was not changed and we did not receive any proceeds as a result of this secondary offering. In 
addition, in October 2002 we repurchased 1,513,275 shares of Aqua America common stock representkg the 
remainder of the shares of Aqua America common stock heid by VE. The repurchase of shares was funded 
with proceeds of $22,000 from a short-tern credlt facility. In May 2003, this $22,000 short-term cre&t facility 
was repaid with funds from the issuance of 1,868,750 shares of common stock through a shelf registration, 
providmg proceeds of approximately $33,100, net of expenses. The balance of the net proceeds were used to 
repay orher short-term debt. 

The Board of Directors has autholrized us to purchase our common stock, &om time to tune, in the open 
market or through privately negotiated txansactions. We have not purchased any shares under this authorization 
since 2000. As of December 31,2003,411,209 shares remain available for repurchase. Funding for future stock 
purchases, if any? is not expected to have a material impact on our hnmud position. 

Contractual Obhtions 

The following table summarizes our contractual cash obhgations as of December 31,2003: 

Payments Due By Period 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter Total 

Long-term debt (a) 3 39,386 !$ 40,418 $ 16,088 $ 14,395 $ 19,438 3 606,327 $ 736,052 
Operating leases @) 2,558 2,110 1,352 1,081 1,016 16,420 24,537 
Uncon&tional purchase 

obhgations (c) 7,573 7,403 7,403 7,403 7,238 68,485 105,505 
Other purchase 

obligations (d) 7,400 7,400 
Defined benefit plan 

obligations {e) 5,371 5,371 
Other obligations (f) 5,105 200 200 200 200 5,805 

$ 67.393 $ 50.131 $ 25.043 8 23.079 $ 27.892 $ 691.232 $ 884,770 

Represents sinking h n d  obligations and debt maturities, 
Represents operating leases that are noncancelable, before expiration, for the lease of motor vehicles, 
buildmgs, land and other cquipment. 
Represents our commitment to purchase minimum quantities of water as stipulated in agreements with 
other watcr purveyors. We use purchased water to supplement OUT water supply, particularly during 
periods of peak c u s  toomer demand. 
Represents an approximation of the open purchase orders as of the period end for goods and services 
purchased in the ordinary course of business. 
Represents contributions expected to be made to qualified defined benefit plan. The amount of required 
contributions in 2005 and thereafter is not determinable. 
Represents capital expenditures estimated to be required under legal and binding contractual obligations. 

In addition to these obligations, we make r e h d s  on Customers' Advances for Construcuon over a 
period of time based on operating revenues related to developer-installed water mains or as new customers 

are connected to and take service from such mains. After all refunds are made, any remaining balance i s  
transferred to Contributions in Ad of Construction. The refund amounts are not included in the above table 
because the rehnd amounts and timing cannot be accurately estimated because huture refund payments depend on 
several variables, includmg new customer connections, customer consumption levels and f-uture rate increases. 
Portions of these refund amounts are payable annually through 2017 and amounts not paid by the contract 
expiration dates become non-rehdable. 
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AQUA AMERICA, rNc.  AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

These contractual obligations will be funded horn cash flows from operations and tiquidty sources held 
by or available to Aqua America. 

AquaSource Acauisition 

Pursuant to our strategy to grow through acquisitions, on July 31,2003, we completed the 
acquisition of four operating water and wastewater subsidiaries of AquaSource, Inc. (a subsiclsary of DQE, . 

Inc.), including selected, integrated operating and maintenance contracts and related assets (individually and 
collectively the acquisition is referred to as “AquaSoui-ce”) for $190,717 in cash, as adjusted pursuant to the 
purchase agreement far the cornpietion of a closing balance sheet and the finalization of working capital 
($195,533 was paid at closing and refunds were subsequendy received totaling $4,816). There remains 
approximately $12,000 of the above purchase price subject to an agreed-upon arbitration process. 
Accordmgly, the final purchase price is expected to be within the range of $178,700 to $190,717. We expect 
the arbitration process to conclude by mid-year 2004. The results of Aquasource have been included in ow 
consolidated financial statements beginning August 1,2003. The acquired operations of Aquasource serve 
over 130,000 water and wastewater customer accounts in 11 states (including the Connecticut operations 
which we sold in October 2003). Please refer to the section captioned “Dispositions” for a discussion of 
the sale of the Aquasource operations located in Connecticut and the planned sale of the New York 
operations. 

The Aquasource acquisition was initially funded by a portion of the proceeds from theJuly 2003 
issuance of $135,000 of unsecured notes due 2023, with an interest rate of 4.87%, and rhe issuance of a 
$90,000 unsecured note by Aqua America. In August 2003, the $90,000 unsecured note was repaid with the 
proceeds from the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of c o r n o n  stock through a shelE registration. 

The acquired operations of Aquasource serve over 13O,OOO water and wastewater customer 
accounts in 11 states (including the Connecticut operations which we sold in October 2003). The acquisition 
provides an expanded platform from which to extend OUT growth-through-acquisition strategy of acquiring 
water and wastewater utility systems that are near or adjacent to our existing service territories. The 
Aquasource operations are comprised oE approximately 600 small systems, which are generally clustered in 
regions to achieve some level of operating efficiency. 

Market Risk 

We are subject to market risks in the normal course of business, includmg changes in interest rates 
and equity prices. The exposure to changes in interest rates is a result of fmancings through the issuance of 
fuced-rate, long-term debt. Such exposure is typically related to fmancings between utility rate increases, 
because generally our rate increases provide a revenue level to allow recovery of our current cost of capital. 
Interest rate risk is managed through the use of a combination of long-term debt, which is at fixed interest 
rates and short-term debt, which is at floating interest rates. As of December 31, 2003, the debt maturities 
by period and the weighted average interest rate for fixed-rate, long-term debt are as follows: 

Fair 
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter To tal Value 

Long-term 
debt (fixed rate) 

Weighted average 
interest rate 

$ 39,386 $40,418 $ 16,088 $ 14,395 $ 19,438 $ 606,327 $ 736,052 $ 781,502 

6.39% 7.26% 7.25% 6.94% 7.38% 6.02% 6.19% 

From time to time, we make investments in marketable equity securities. As a result, we are exposed to the 
risk of changes in equity prices €or the “available for sale” marketable equity securities. As of December 31,2003, 
our carrying value of marketable equity securities was $1,013, which reflects the market value of such securities and 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDWRIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 
is in excess of our oliginal cost. The market risks to which we are exposed are consistent with the risks to which 
we were exposed in the prior year. 

Capitaiiza tion 

The following table summarizes out: capitalization during the past five years: 

December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 

Lohg-term debt* 
Preferred stock* 

52.8% 
0.0% 

5 5.6% 
0.0% 

52.9% 
0. I O/O 

52.4% 
0.2% 

5 3.8% 
0.2% 

Common stockholders‘ equity 47.2% 44.4% 47.0% 47.4*/0 46.0% 
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 

“Includes current portion. 

The changes in the capitahation ratios primarily result from the issuance of common stock over the past 
five years, and the issuance of debt to finance our acquisitions and capital program and the previously mentioned 
repurchase of cotnmon stock from Veolia Enviromement (€omerly Vivendi, SA.) in 2002. It is out: goal to 
maintain an equity ratio adequate to support out: current Standard and Poors corporate credit rating of “A+” and 
its senior secured debt rating of “AA-” for Aqua Pennsylvania, our largest operating subsidiary. 

Dividends on Common Stock 

We have paid common dividends consecutively for 59 years. Effective December 1,2003, our Boatd of 
Directors authorized an increase of 7.1Y0 in the chidend rate over the amount we paid in the previous quarter. As 
a result of this authorization, be@g with the dividend payment in December 2003, the m n d  dividend rate 
increased to $0.48 per share. We presently intend to pay quarterly cash dividends in the hture, on March 1, June 
1, September 1 and December 1, subject to ow eamtngs and financial condition, regulatory requirements and such 
other factors as our Board of Directors may deem relevant. During the past five years, our common dividends 
paid have averaged 59.4% of net income. 

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES 

Our fmancial condition and results of operations are impacted by the methods, assumptions, and 
estimates used in the application of critical accounting policies. The following accounting policies are 
particularly important to out: fmancial condition or results of operations, and require estimates or other 
judgements of matters of uncertainty, Changes in the estimates or other judgements included w i h  these 
accounting policies could result in a significant change to the financial statements. We believe our most critical 
accounting policies include revenue recoption, the use of regulatory assets and liabilities as permitted by 
Statement of Financial Accounthg Standards (“SFAS”) No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation,” the review for impairment of our long-lived assets which consist primarily of Utility Plant in 
Service and regulatory assets, and ow accounting €or pensions and other postretirement benefits. 

Our utility revenues r e c o p e d  in an accounting period include amouots billed to customers on a cycle 
basis and unbjlled amounts based on estunated usage from the last billing. to the end of the accounting period. 
The estimated usage is based on out: judgement and assumptions; our actual results could differ from these 
estimates which would result in operating revenues being adjusted in the period that the revision to our 
estimates are determined. 

SFAS No. 71 stipulates generally accepted accounting principles for companies whose rates are 
established by or are subject to approval by an independent third-party regulator. In accordance with SFAS 
No. 71, we defer costs and credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabihties when it is probable 
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AQUA AMERICA, rNc. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

that these costs and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in a period dfferent from when the 
costs and credits were incurred. These deferred amounts, both assets and liabilities, are then recognized in die 
income statement in the same period that they are reflected in ow fates charged for water and wastewater 
service. In the event that our assessment as to the probabhty of the inclusion in the rate-rnaking process is 
incorrect, the associated regulatory asset or liability would be adjusted to reflect the change in OW assessment or 
change in regulatory approval. 

In accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the. Impairment or Disposal 
of Long-Lived Assets”, we review €or impairment of ow long-lived assets, including Utility Plant in Service. 
We also review regulatory assets for the continued application of SFAS No. 71. Out review determines 
whether there have been changes in circumstances or events that have occurred that require adjustments to the 
casrying value of these assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 71, adjustments to the carrying value of these 
assets would be made in instances where the inclusion in the ratemaking process is unlikely, 

We maintain a qualified defined benefit pension plan and plans that provide for certain postretirement 
benefits other than pensions. Accounting €or pensions and other postretirement benefits requires an extensive 
use of assumptions about the discount rate, expected retwn on pian assets, the rate of future compensation 
increases received by our employees, mortality, turnover and medical costs. Each assumption is reviewed 
annually with assistance €ram OUT actuarial consultant who provides guidance in establishing the assumptions. 
The assumptions are selected to represent the average expected experience over time and may dtffer in any one 
year from actual experience due to changes in capital markets and the overall economy. These differences will 
impact the amount of pension and other postretirement benefit expense that we recognize. 

Our discount rate is based on a market rate for a recogneed-rating agency’s high-quahty long-term 
bond portfolio with durations m a t c h g  the expected payouts under our retirement plans Our pension 
expense and liability (benefit obligations) increases as the dwount rate is reduced. A 25 basis-point reduction 
im t h ~ s  assumption would have increased 2003 pension expense by $500 and the pension liabilities by $5,500. 
The present values of Aqua America’s future pension and other postretirement obligations were determined 
using Ascount rates of 6.25% a t  December 31,2003 and 6.75% at December 31,2002. Our expense under 
these plans is determined using the discount rate as of the begmning of the year, which was 6+75% for 2003, 
and will be 6.25% for 2004. 

Our expected return on assets is determined by evaluating the asset class return expectations with ow 
advisors as well as actual, long-term, historical results of our asset returns. Ow pension expense increases as the 
expected retwn on assets decreases. A 25 basis-point reduction in this assumption would have increased 2003 
pension expense by $230. For 2003, we used an 8.5% expected r e m  on assets assumption which will remain 
unchanged for 2004. The expected return on assets is based on a targeted allocation of 65% equities and 35% fixed 
income. We believe that our actual Iong-term asset allocation on average will approximate the targeted allocation. 
Our targeted allocation is driven by the investment strategy to earn a reasonable rate of return while maintaining 
risk at acceptable leveIs through the diversification of investments across and with various asset categories. 

As of December 31,2003, we have an additianal minimum liabihty of $41 associated with our defmed 
benefit pension plan. The additional minrmum liability is a result of the accumulated benefit obligation 
exceeding the fair value of plan assets and results in the establishment oE a regulatory asset, as we anticipate 
recovery of the hture, increased pension expense through customer rates. An additional minimurn liability of 
$4,731 was initially recorded on December 31,2002 as a result of the following events during 2002: 

pension plan assets declined due to negative equity market performance, and 
assumed dmount rate decreased resulting in an increase in pension liabifrbes. 

The change in the additional minimum liability from December 31,2002 to December 31,2003 resulted from an 
increase in the pension plan assets during 2003 due to positive equity market performance, offset partially by the 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (continued) 

(En thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 

effect of a decreased dlscount rate. Although additional minimum liability does not directly impact net income 
or cash flow, in fi~ture years, our pension expense and cash bding requirements are anticipated to increase as 
a result of the decline in plan assets and the discount rate. Funding requirements for qualified defined benefit 
pension plans are determined by government regulations and not by accounting pronouncements. In 
accordance with fundmg rules, duritlg 2004 our requit-ed pension contribution is expected to be approximately 
$5,371. We expect hture changes in the amount of contributions and expense r e c o p e d  will be properly 
included in customer rates. 

IWACT OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

In July 2001, the Financial Accauntkg Standards Board (“FASB’? approved statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards C‘SFAS”) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 143 
requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it 
is incurred. When the liability is initially recognized, the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset is 
increased by the same amount. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value each period, and the 
capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, we may 
settle the obligation for its recorded amount, or an alternative amount, thereby incurring a gam or loss upon 
settlement. We’ve adopted this statement as required on January 1, 2003 and it did not have an impact on our 
results of operations. We recaver, through customer rates, retirement costs which do not meet the definition 
of an asset retkement obhgation under SFAS No. 143. Our Pennsylvania operating subsidrary recovers 
retirement costs through an amortization process in customer rates after the costs are incurred. Generally, 
these costs are recovered over a five-year period. As a result, $13,699 as of December 31,2003 and $11,089 as 
oE December 31,2002 has been reclassified and reported as a regulatory asset. Certain other of out: operathg 
subsidiaries recover retirement costs through the depreciation component of customer rates during the life of 
the associated asset. As a result, $7,484 as of December 31,2003 and $6,951 as of December 31,2002 has been 
reclassified and is reported as a regulatory liability. Prior to the adoption of thts statement, these mounts were 
embedded within accumulated depreciation. All prior year amounts have been restated to remove the 
regulatory asset and liability from accumulated depreciation. 

In April 2002, the FASB approved SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,44 and 64, 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145, among other thugs, 
rescinds SFAS No. 4, which required all gams and losses from the extingutsbent of debt to be classified as an 
extraordinary item and amends SFAS No. 13 to require that certain lease modifications that have economic 
effects similar to sale-leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner as sale-leaseback 
transactions. We adopted &.IS statement in the first quarter of 2003 and it did not have a material impact on 
ow results of operations or fmancial position. 

In June 2002, the FASB approved SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or 
Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. I46 requires the recognition of costs associated with exit or disposal 
activities when they are incurred rather than at the date of a comnzitment to an exit or disposal plan. This 
statement replaces the previous accounting guidance provided in Emerging Issues Task Force h u e  No. 94- 
3, “Liability Recognition €or Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity 
(includirrg Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal 
activities that are initiated after December 31,2002. We adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2003 
and it did not have a material impact on our results of operations and financial position. 
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In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and 
Disclosure Reqlriremen ts for Guarantees, Includmg Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” an 
interpretation of SFAS No. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of SFAS No, 34. This interpretation clarifies the 
requirements of FASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting €or Contingencies” relating to the guarantor’s 
accountkg for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guarantees. The disclosure provisions of 
the interpretation are effective for financial statements of periods ending after December 15,2002. The 
provisions for initial recognition and measurement are effective on a prospecthe basis for guarantees that 
arc issued or modified after December 31,2002. We adopted the accounting provisions of this standard in 
the first quarter of 2003 and it did not have a material impact on our results of operations or fmancial 
position. 

In April 2003, the FASB approved SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative 
hstrurnents and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies b a n d  accounting and reporting for 
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and far hedgmg 
activities. The adoption of thrs standard had no effect on our results of operations or financial position. As of 
Dccember 31,2003, we had no derivative instruments or hedgmg activities. 

In May 2003, the FASB approved SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments 
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards for classifying and 
measuring as liabifities certain fmancial instruments with characteristics oE both liabilities and equity. The 
standard is effective for fmancial instruments entered into or moddied after May 31,2003, and is otherwise 
effective July 1, 2003. This statement dld not have a material impact on our results of operations or 
financial position. 

In December 2003, the FASB apptoved SFAS No. 132 (Revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosures 
about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits.” SFAS No. 132 amends SFAS No. 87 “Employers’ 
Accounting for Pensions,” SFAS No. 88 ‘%Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments oEDefined 
Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,” and WAS No. 106 “Employers’ Accounting €or 
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” This new statement docs not change the recoption and 
measurement requirements oE those amended statements, and retains the disclosure requirements contained in 
SFAS No. 132, “Employers’ Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” which it replaces 
and requires additional dwlosure. We adopted the provisions of this statement as required as of December 31, 
2003. 

InJanuary 2004, the FASB issued FASB StafE Position (“FSP”) No. 106-1, “Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medcare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 
2003.” FSP 106-1, which is effective for our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 
31,2003, permits a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan that provides a prescription drug benefit to 
make a one-lime election to defer accounting for the et-fects of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement 
and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Act”). The Act was s p e d  into law in December 2003 and establishes a 
prescription drug benefit under Medicare (Medicare Part D) and a federal subsidy to sponsors of 
postretirement health care plans that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. 
Under FSP No. 106-1, sponsors must consider the two new features in measuring the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obhgation (“‘APBO”) and net periodic Postretirement benefit costs. In accordance with 
FSP 106-1, we made a one-time election to defer the recognition of the impact on FSP No. 106 accounting. 
Any measures of APBO and net periodic postretirement benefit cost in the consolidated financial statements 
and t-ootnotes for the year ended December 31,2003 do not reflect the effects of the Act. Currently, specific 
authoritative accounting guidance for the federal subsidy is pending and that guldance when issued may require 
us to change previously reported information. We are currently investigating the impacts of the adoption of 
FSP 106-1’s initial recognition, measurement and dtsclosure provisions on our consolidated financial 
statements. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Report of Management 
- 

The consolidated financial statements and related information for the years ended December 31, 
2003,2002 and 2001 were prepared by management in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America and include management’s best estimates and judgments, as 
required. Financial information included in other sections of this annual report is consistent with that in the 
consolidated fmancial statements. 

The Company has an internal accounting control structure designed to provide reasonable assurance 
that assets are safeguarded and that transactions are properly authorized and recorded in accordance with 
established policies and procedures. The internal control structure is supported by the selection and training 
of qualified personnel, the delegation of management authority and responsibility, dissemination of policies 
and procedures and periodic reviews by our internal audit director. 

The Company’s independent accountants, PricewaterhouseCoopers U P ,  provide an independent 
review of management’s reporting of results of operations and financial condition. PricewaterhouseCoopers 
LLP has audited the financial statements by conducting tests as they deemed appropriate and their report 
follows. 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Dixectors selects and evaluates the Company’s independent 
accountants and reviews the scope and results of their audits. The Audit Committee also reviews the 
integrity of the Company’s financial reporting process, system of internal controls and other significant 
financial matters. The Audlt Committee meets q p l a r l y  with management, our internal audit director and the 
independent accountants. The Audit Committee held six meetings in 2003. 

Nicholas DeBenedictis 
Chairman & 
President 

David P. Smeltzew 
Senior Vice President - Finance 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of 
Aqua America, Inc.: 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of 
income and comprehensive income, of capitahation and of cash flow present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Aqua America, Inc. (formerly Philadelphia Suburban Corporation) and its 
subsidiaries at December 31,2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31,2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These frnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s 
management; our responsibhty is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and signrficant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
Financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Philadelphia, PA 
January 28,2004 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREI4EblSIvE INCOME 

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 
Years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 

Operating revenues 
Costs and expenses: 

Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Taxes other than incofie taxes 

Operating income 
Other expense (income): 

Interest expense, net 
Allowance for funds used during construction 
Gain on sale of water system 
Gain on sale of other assets 

Income before income taxes 
Provision for income taxes 
Net income 
Dividends on preferred stock 
Net income wadable to common stock 

Net income 
Other Comprehensive income (loss), net of tax: 

Unrealized gains on securities 
Reclassification adjustment for gains reported in net income 

Comprehensive income 

Net income per common share: 
Basic 
Diluted 

Basic 
Diluted 

Average common shares outstandmg during the period 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

2003 2002 
- 

2001 

$ 367,233 322,028 $ 307,280 

140,602 117,735 111,885 

2,941 2,898 2,189 
21,607 19,467 20,887 

21 3,672 181,524 172,940 

48,522 4 1,424 37,979 

153,561 

44,662 
(231 27) 

140,504 

40,396 
(1,389) 
(5,676) 

134,340 

(5,6 92) (2,079) (3,384) 
116,718 109,252 99,087 
45,923 42,046 38,976 
70,795 67,206 60,111 

10 52 106 
$ 70.785 $ 67,154 $ 60.005 

$ 70,795 $ 

455 

67,206 $ 

104 

60,111 

39 
(347) (767) (239) 
108 (663) (200) 

$ 70.903 $ 66.543 $ 59.911 

$ 0.80 $ 0-78 $ 0.71 
$ 0.79 !! 0.78 $ 0.70 

88,275 85,674 84,841 
89-244 86.538 85.943 
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AQUA AhtENCA, INC. AND SUBSTDIARIES 
CONSOLDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(ln thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 
December 31,2003 and 2002 

2003 2002 - 

Assets 
Property, plant and equipment, at cost 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net property, plant and equipment 

$ 2,302,304 $ 1,836,892 
478,013 350,189 

1,824,291 1,486,703 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net 
Inventory, materials and supplies 
Prepayments and other current assets 
Total current assets 

10,757 
62,320 
5,841 

5,915 
57,680 
4,555 

5,051 2,758 
83.969 70,908 

Regulatory assets 
Deferred charges and other assets, net 
Funds restricted for construction activity 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 
Stockholders' equity: 

Common stock at 116.50 par value, authorized 100,000,000 shares, 

Capital in excess of par value 
Retained earnings 
Minority interest 
Treasury stock, at cost, 681,384 and 2,151,350 shares in 2003 and 2002 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 
Total stockholders' equity 

issued 93,270,424 and 87,046,893 in 2003 and 2002 

6.05% Series B cumulative preferred stock 
Long-term debt, excludmg current portion 
Commitments 

Current liabdities: 
Current portion of tong-term debt 
Loans payable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Accrued taxes 
Other accrued liabilities 
Total current liabilities 

Deferred credits and other liabilities: 
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits 
Customers' advances for construction 
0 ther 
Total deferred credits and other liabdities 

Contributions in aid of construction 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

98,761 92,313 
34,277 23,39 1 

$ 2,069,736 3 1,7 2 7,069 
28,438 43,754 

96 46,635 $ 35,034 
413,008 317,871 
210,915 180,047 

912 503 

171 63 
659,030 493,097 

(12,611) (40,421) 

696,666 
172 

582,910 

39,386 34,265 
96,459 115,113 
32,321 31,058 
11,126 9,269 
16,779 14,500 
35,930 22,326 

232.001 226.531 

190,395 187,300 
72,500 69,790 
9,419 13,330 

272.3 14 270.420 
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AQUA AMERICA, LNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION 

(In thousands of dollas, except per share amounts) 
December 31,2003 and 2002 

2003 2002 - 

Stockholders' equity: 
Common stock, $.50 par value 
Capital in kxcess of par value 
Retained earnings 
Minority interest 
Treasury stock, at cost 
Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Total stockholders' equity 

6.05% Series B cumulative preferred stock 

Long-term debt: 
Long-term debt of subsidraries (substantially secured by utility plant): 

Interest Rate Range 
0.00% to 2.49% 
2.50% to 2.99% 
3.00% to 3.49% 
3.50% to 3.99% 
4.00% to 4.99% 
5.00% to 5.49% 
5.50°/o to 5.99% 
6.00% to 6.49% 
6SO% to 6.99% 
7.00% to 7.47% 
7.50% to 7.99% 
8.00% to 8.49% 
8.50% to 8.99% 
1).OO% to 9.49% 
9.50% to 9.99% 
10.00% to 10.50% 

Note payable, 6.05%, due 2006 
Unsecured nates payable, 4.87%, due 2023 

Current portion of long-term debt 
Long-term debt, excluding current portion 
Total capitalization 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements. 

46,635 $ 35,034 
41 3,008 317,871 
210,915 180,047 

912 503 
(12,611) (40,42 1) 

171 63 
659.030 493.097 

16,868 
18,913 
5,618 
2,800 
8,135 

110,875 
76,260 

119,360 
42,000 
46,7 1 6 
23,000 
17,500 

53,805 
43,242 

9,000 

172 

18,009 
14,052 

3,200 
8,135 

90,955 
86,260 

126,360 
52,000 
58,000 
23,000 
17,497 
9,000 

54,359 
44,637 

4,733 

6,000 6,000 
600,092 616,197 

960 978 
135,000 
736,052 617,175 
39,386 34,265 

696,666 582,910 
$ 1,355,696 $ 1,076,179 
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AQUA AMENCA, INC. AND S U B S I D W  
CONSOLDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS 

@n thousands of dollars) 
Years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconde net income to net cash 

flows from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred income taxes 
Gain on sale ofwater system 
Gain on sale of other assets 
Net increase in receivables, inventory and prepayments 
Net increase in payables, accrued interest, accrued taxes 

Payment of Competitive Transition Charge 
0 ther 

and other accrued liabilities 

Net cash flows from operating activities 
Cash flows from investing activities: 

Property, plant and equipment addtiom, including allowance for 
funds used during construction of $2,127 $1,389 and $1,222 

Acquisitions of water and wastewater systems 
Net decrease (increase) in funds restricted for construction activity 
Net proceeds from the sale of  water systems 
Net proceeds from the sale of other assets 
Other 

Net cash flows used in investing activities 
Cash flows from financing activities: 

Customers' advances and contributions in aid of construction 
Repayments of cus torners' advances 
Net proceeds (repayments) of short-term debt 
Proceeds from long-term debt 
Repayments of long-term debt 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Proceeds from issuing common stock 
Repurchase of common stock 
Dividends paid on preferred stock 
Dividends paid on common stock 
0 ther 

Net cash flows from financing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeat 
Cash paid during the year for: 

Interest, net of amounts capitalized 
Income taxes 

- 
2003 2002 2001 

70,735 $ 

51,463 
26,741 

- 
(5 1 692) 

(314) 

7,777 
- -  

67,206 $ 

44,322 
18,470 
(5,676) 
(2,079) 

(742) 

1,346 

60,111 

40,168 
14,935 

(3,384) 
(5,295) 

7,045 
(1 1,465) 

(7,397) (1,287) 50 
143,373 12 1,560 102,165 

(1 63,320) 
(1 92,331) 

15,314 
4,000 
6,496 

(1 36,164) 

(23,986) 

6,258 

(8,914) 

12,118 

(124,088) 

(1 5,806) 

5,211 

(935 17) 

(312) (362) (1 73) 
(330,153) (1 5 1,050) (1 44,37 3) 

8,181 10,266 5,175 

(1 8,654) 5,445 8,385 
154,537 1 19,350 64,024 

(4,257) (5,070) (4,6 5 2) 

(44,204) (43,279) (8,498) 
(172) (944) (644) 

(1,353) (24,109) (2,493) 
(10) (52) (106) 

134,826 10,611 13,522 

(39,9 1 7)  (36,789) (34,234) 
2,645 (2,034) (1,348) 

2 91,622 34,395 39,131 

5,915 1,010 4,087 
$ 10,757 $ 5,915 $ 1,010 

4,842 4,905 (3,077) 

$ 40,572 $ 38,040 $ 38,637 
$ 19,168 $ 24,165 $ 19,388 

See Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-Cus torners' Advances for Construction, Acquisitions and 

See accompanying notes to consolidated fmancial statements. 
Employee Stock and and Incentive Plans footnotes for description of non-cash activities. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC, AND SUBSIDLARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

- 
Summarv of Sirmihcant Accountinp Policies 

Name Change - On January 16,2004, Philadelphia Suburban Corporation changed i t s  corporate name to Aqua America, 
Inc. In addition, we have changed our ticker symbol from PSC to WTR.on the New York Stock Exchange and 
Philadelphia Stock Exchange effective as of the opening of trading on January 20,2004. 

Natm afOperutz’ons - Aqua America, Inc. (‘(Aqua America” or the “Company”) is thc holding company for regulated 
ublities p r o d h g  water of: wastewater services in Pennsylvania, Oko, Illinois, Texas, NewJersey, Indiana, Virgn.~, 
Florida, North. Carolina, Maine, Missouri, New York, South Carolina and Kentucky. Our largest operating subsidiary, 
Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. - formerly Pennsylvania Suburban Water Company, accounts for approximately 6OYo of om 
operating revenues and provides water or wastewater service to customers in the suburban areas n o d  and west of the 
City of Phdadelphia and in 19 other counties in Pennsylvania. The Company’s other subsidiaries provide sirdar 
services in 13 other states. In addtion, the Company provides water and wastewater service b o u g h  operating and 
maintenance contracts with muniapal authorities and other parties close to our operating companies’ service territories. 

Reguhtzon - Most of the operating companies that are regulated public utilities are subject to regulation by the public 
utility commissions of the states in which they operate. The respective public utility commissions have jurisdiction with 
respect to rates, service, accounting procedures, issuance of securities, acquisitions and other matters. Some of the 
operating companies that are regulated public utilities are subject to mte regulation by county or city government. 
Regdated public utilities follow Statement of Finmud Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 71, “Accounting for the 
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.” SFAS No. 71 provides for the redoption of regulatory assets and liabilities as 
allowed by regulators for costs or credits that are reflected in current rates or are considered probable of being included 
Ln future rates. The regulatory assets or liabilities are hen  relieved as the cost or credit is reflected in rates. 

Conso~h~z’upt - The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries. All 
material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated where appropriate. 

Recognition Ofhuenzres - Revenues include amounts bdled to customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on 
estimated usage horn the latest billing to the end of the accounting period. Nomegdated revenues are recognized when 
services are performed and are primarily associated with operating and maintenance contracts and data processing 
service fees. Nonregulated revenues totaled $1 1,806 in 2003, $7,190 in 2002 and $7,092 in 2001. 

Propeg, Phnt and Equ$ment and Dqtmautioon - Pmperty, plant and equipment consist primarily of uthty p h t .  The cost of 
additions includes contracted cost, direct labor and €ring benefits, materials, overheads and, for certain utility plant, 
allowance for funds used during construction. Water systems acquired are recorded at estimated arigvlal cost of utillty 
plant when first devoted to utility service and the applicable depreciation is recorded to accumulated depreciation. The 
dfference between the estimated orrgvlal cost, less applicable accumulated depreciation, and the purchase price is 
recorded as an acquisition adjustment w i h  utility plant. At December 31,2003, u d t y  plant includes a net credit 
acquisition adjustment of $48,054, which is generally being amortized from 0 to 20 years. Amorthation of the 
acquisition adjustments totaled $1,649 during 2003, $633 during 2002 and $545 during 2001. 

Udity expenditures for maintenance and repairs, includulg major maintenance projects and minor renewals and 
betterments, are charged to operating expenses when incurred in accordance with the system of accounts prescribed by 
the public u&ty commissions of the states in which the company operates. The cost of new Units of property and 
betterments axe capitalized. 

When units of utility property are replaced, retiwed or abandoned, the recorded value thereof is credited to the 
asset account and such value, together with the net cost of fernoval, is charged to accumulated depreciation. To the 
extent the Company recovers cost of removal or other retirement costs through rates aEter the retirement costs are 
incurred, a regulatory asset is recorded. In some cases, the Company recovers retirement costs through rates during the 
life of the associated asset and before the costs are inmed .  These amounts result in a regulatory liability being reported 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
On thousands of dollars, except per shwe amounts) 

- 
based on the amounts previously recovered through customer rates. All prior year amounts have been xestated to 
remove the regulatory asset and liability from accumulated depreciation where it had been previously reported 

The straight-line remaking life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant G e n d y ,  the st tqht-  
h e  method is used with respect to transportation and mechanical equipment, office equipment and laboratory 
equipment 

In accordance with the requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 144, 
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, the long-lived assets of the Company, which 
consist primarily of Utility Plant in Service and regulatory assets, are reviewed for impairment when changes in 
circumstances or events 0ccu.r. There has been no change in circumstances or events that have occurred that require 
adjustments to the carrying values of these assets. 

AlhwanceforFundr UseA Dmig Consln/citun - The allowance fox fun& used during construction (“Amrr>C,’) is a non-cash 
credit which represents the estimated cost of furids used to finance the construction of utrlity plant, In general, AmJDC 
is applied to construction projects requiting more than one month to complete. No AFUDC is applied to projects 
funded by customer advances for construction or contributions in aid of construction. AEUDC includes the net cost of 
borrowed funds and a rate of return on other Eunds when used, and is recovered through water rates as the utility plant 
is depreciated The amount of AmJDC related to equity funds in 2003,2002 and 2001 was $0, $9 and $0 respectively. 
No interest was capitalized by ow nonregulated businesses. 

Cab and Carh Eqziikhm~ - The Company considers all hghly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or Iess, which are not restricted for construction activity, to be cash equivalents. 

Defend Charpes and OtherAxetJ - Deferred charges and other assets consist of fiiiancing expenses, other costs and 
marketable securities. Deferred bond issuance expenses are amortized by the stmght-he method over the life of the 
related issues. Call premiurns related to the early redemption of long-term debt, along with the unamortized balance of 
the related issuance expense, are deferred and amortized over the life of the long-term debt used to h d  the 
redemption. Other costs, for which the Company has received ox expects to receive prospective rate recovery, are 
deferred and amortized over the period of rate recovery in accordance with SFAS No. 71. 

Marketable securities are considered ‘‘a~&ble-for-sale~~ and accordingly, are carried on the balance sheet at fair 
market value. Unrecognized gains are included in other comprehensive income. 

Income Taxes - The Company accounts for certain income and expense items in different time pertods for hnancd 
reporting &an for tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided on the temporary differences between 
the tax basis of the assets and liabilities, and the amounts at which they are canied in the consolidated h a n d  
statements. The income tax effect of temporary differences not allowed currently in rates is recorded as deferred taxes 
with an offsetting r e t o r y  asset or liability. These deferred income taxes are based on the enacted tax rates expected 
to be in effect when such temporary ddferences are projected to reverse. Investment tax credits are deferred and 
amortized over the estimated useful lives of the related properties. 

Customm’Aa!vmcesfar Con-rimdion - Water mains or, in some instances, cash advances to reimburse the Company for its 
costs to construct water mains, are canmbuted to the Company by customers, real estate developers and builders in 
order to extend water service to their properties. The value of these contributions is recorded as Customers’ Advances 
for Construction. The Company makes refunds on these advances over a specific period of h e  based on operating 
revenues related to the main or as new customers are connected to and take service from the main. After all refunds axe 
made, any remainin& balance is transfmed to Contributions in Aid of Construction. Non-cash property, in the form of 
water mains, has been received, generally Gom developers, as advances ox contributions of $9,991,17,271 and $10,196 
in 2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Contri!bz&mr in A i d  ofConsttzlction - Contributions in aid of construction include direct non-refundable contributio& and 
the portion of customers’ advances for construction that become non-refundable. 

InumtorieJ-, Materiizh and S@Le;es - Inventories are stated at cost. Cost is principally determined using the hrst-in, first-out 
method 

Stock-Bared Cumpernution -The Company accounts for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method in 
accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accountkg €or Stock Issued to Employees”. Accordingly, no compensation 
expense related to granting of stock options has been recognized in the f inand statemats for stock options that have 
been @anted. h s u a n t  to the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” 
as amended by SFAS No. 148, pro forma net income available to common stock and eatnings per share are presented in 
the followkg table as if cornpensation cost for stock options was determined as of the grant date under the fair value 
method: 

Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

Net income available to common stock, as reported 
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense 

inciuded in reported net income, net of tax 
Less: pro forma expense related to stock options 

granted, net of tax effects 
Pro forma 

Basic net income per share: 
As reported 
Pro forma 

As reported 
Pro forma 

Diluted net income per share: 

70,785 $ 67,154 $ 60,005 

224 473 194 

(1,793) (1,741) (1,125) 
$ 69,216 $ 65,886 $ 59,074 

0.80 $ 
0.78 

0.79 8 
0.78 

0.78 $ 
0.77 

0.78 $ 
0.76 

0.71 
0.70 

0.70 
0.69 

The per share weighted-average fair value at the date of grant for stock options granted during 2003,2002 
and 2001 was $4.67, $5.15 and $4.47 per option, respectively. The fak value of options at the date of grant was 
estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions: 

2003 2002 2001 
Expected life (‘years) 
In teres t rate 
Volatrlity 
Dividend yield 

5.6 5.5 5.2 
3.7Q/o 4.9% 5.0% 

32.4% 34.2% 32.7% 
2.6% 2.6% 2.6% 

Use OfEstimutes in PnpaaraatiDn of Consobdzted Financial Statements - The preparation of consolidated f i n a n d  statements in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported mounts of assets and liabdities and dtsclosure of contingent assets 
and liabrlities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reportkg period. Actual results could dlffer from those estimates. 

&chs$mtion.r - Certain prior year mounts have been reclassified to conform with current year’s presentation. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

I 

RecentAccowhg Pm#oH#cements - In J d y  2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) approvecf 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS) No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Oblig-auons.” 
SFAS No. 243 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obhgation be r e c o p e d  in the period 
in which it is incurred. When the liability is init idy recognized, the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset is 
increased by the same amount. Over time, the liability is accxeted to its present value each period, and the capitahzed 
cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the liability, the Company may settle 
the obligation for its recorded amount, or an alternative amount, thereby incurring a saifl or loss upon settlement. 
The Company adopted this statement as required on January 1,2003 and it &d not have an impact an the 
Company’s results of operations. The Company recovers, through customer rates, retirement costs which do not 
meet the definition of an asset retirement obligation under SFAS No. 143. The Company’s Pennsylvania operating 
subsidmy recovers retirement costs through an amortization process in customer rates after the costs are incurred. 
Generally, these costs are recovered over a five-year period. As a result, $13,699 and $11,089 have been reclassified 
and reported as a regulatory asset as of December 31,2003 and 2002. Certain other o€ the Company’s operating 
subsidiaries recover retirement costs through the depreciation component of customer rates during the life of the 
associated asset. As a result, $7,484 and $6,951 have been reclassified as of December 31,2003 and 2002, and is 
reported as a regulatory liability. Prior to the adoption of t h i s  statement, these amounts were embedded wit41111 
accumulated depreciation. All prior year amounts have been restated to remove the regulatory asset and liability 
from accumulated depreciation. 

In April 2002, the FASB approved SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4,44 and 64, 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and TechnicaI Corrections.“ SFAS No. 145, among other thmgs, rescinds 
SFAS No. 4, which required all gams and losses from the extinguishment of debt to be classified as an extraordtnary 
item and amends SFAS No. 13 to require that certain lease modifications that have economic effects similar to sale- 
leaseback transactions be accounted for in the same manner as sale-leaseback transactions. The Company adopted 
this statement in die first quarter of 2003 and it dld not have a material impact on the Company’s results of 
operations or financial position. 

InJune 2002, the FASB approved SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or 
Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 requires the recoption of costs associated with exit or disposal activities 
when they are incurred rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. This statement 
replaces the previous accounting guidance provided in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability 
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain 
Costs Incurred in a Restructu~hg).” SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after 
December 32,2002. The Company adopted this standard in the first quarter of 2003 and it did not have a 
material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position, 

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, ccGuamntorJs Accounting and 
Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Includmg Indtrect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” an 
interpretation of SFAS No. 5, 57 and 107 and rescission of SFAS No. 34. Tkus interpretation clarifies the 
requirements of FASB Statement No. 5, “Accounting for Contir~gencies” relating to the guarantor’s accounting 
for, and drsclosure of, the issuance of certain types ofguarantees. The disclosure provisions of the interpretation 
are effective for financial statements of periods ending after December 15,2002. The provisions for initial 
recognition and measurement are effective on a prospective basis for guarantees that are issued or modified a€ter 
December 31,2002. The Company adopted the accounting provisions of this standard in the fust quarter of 
2003 and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position. 

In April 2003, the FASB approvcd SPAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting 
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and for hedging 
activities. The adoption of this standard had no effect on the Company’s results of operations or financial 
position. As of December 31,2003, the Company had no derivative instruments or hedging activities. 

€or 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

In May 2003, the FASB approved SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Fkancial Instruments %th 
Characteristics of both Liabihties and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 establishes standards €or classifying and measuring 
as liabihties certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. The standard is 
effective for financial instruments entered into of: modified after May 31,2003, and is otherwke effective July 1, 
2003. This statement &d not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial position, 

In December 2003, the FASB approved SFAS No. 132 (Revised 2003), “Employers’ Disclosures about 
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits.” SFAS No. 132 mends SFAS No. 87 “Employers’ Accounting for 
Pensions,” SFAS No. 88 ccEmployers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans and for Termination Benefits,” and SFAS No. 106 “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other 
Than Pensions.” T h ~ s  new statement does not change the recognition and measutement requirements of those 
amended statements, and retains the disclosure requirements contained in SFAS No. 132, “EmpIoyers’ Disclosures 
about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits,” which it replaces and requires additional disclosure. The 
Company adopted the provisions of this statement as required as of December 31,2003. 

In January 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure 
Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescziption Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of2003.” FSP 106- 
1, which is effective for the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,2003, 
permits a sponsor of a postretirement health care plan that provides a prescription drug benefit to make a one-time 
election to defer accounting for the effects of the Medxare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 
of 2003 (the “Act”). The Act was signed into law in December 2003 and establishes a prescription drug benefit 
under Medcare (Medicare Part D) and a federal subsidy to sponsors of postretirement health care plans that provide 
a benefit that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medcare Part D. Under FSP No. 106-1, sponsors must consider the 
two new features in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (“‘APDO”) and net periodic 
postretirement benefit costs. In accordance with FSP 106-1, the Company made a one-time election to defer the 
recognition of the impact an FSP No. 106 accounting. Any measures of APBO and net periodic postretirement 
benefit cost in the consolidated financial statements and footnotes for the year ended December 31,2003 do not 
reflect the effects of the Act. Currently, specific authoritative accounting guidance for the federal subsidy is p e n h g  
and that gudance when issued may require the Company to change previously reported information. The Company 
is currently investigating the impacts of the adoption o€ FSP 106-1’s initial recognition, measurement and disclosure 
provisions on its consolidated fmancial statements. 

Acquisitions 

Aqmd’om-eAq.m~ztioqtrisition - Pursuant to our strategy to grow through acquisitions, on July 31,2003, the Company 
completed its acquisition of €our operating water and wastewater subsidlaries of Aquasource, Inc. (a subsidiary of 
DQE, Inc,), including selected, integrated operating and maintenance contracts and related assets (individually 
and collectively the acquisition is rekrred to as “AquaSource”) for $190,717 in cash, as adjusted pursuant to the 
purchase agreement far the completion of a closing balance sheet and the finalization of working capital 
($195,533 was paid at closing and refunds were subsequently received totaling $4,816). There remains 
approximately $12,000 of the above purchase pricc in dispute subject to an arbitration process under the terms of 
the purchase agreement. Accordingly, the fmal purchase price is expected to be within the range of $178,7OO to 
$190,717. We expect the arbitration process to conclude by mid-2004. 

The results of Aquasource have been included in the Company’s consolidated fmancial statements 
bepning August 1,2003. The acquired operations of Aquasource serve over 130,000 water and wastewater 
customer accounts in 11 states (including the Connecticut operations which were sold in October 2003). Please 
re€er to the Dispositions footnote for a discussion of the sale of the Aquasource operations located in 
Connecticut and the planned sale of the New York operations. The Aquasource acquisition was initially funded 
by a portion of the proceeds from the July 2003 issuance of $135,000 of unsecured notes due 2023, with an 
interest rate of 4.87%, and the issuance of a $90,000 unsecured note by Aqua America. In August 2003, the 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

$90,000 unsecured note was 
through a shelf registration. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

repaid with the proceeds from the issuance of 5,000,000 shares of common stock 

method of accounting, the purchase p..ce is allocated to Aquasource’s net tangible Under the purchase 
L 

and intangible assets based upon their estimated €air values at the date of the acquisition. The p r e b a r y  
purchase price auocation, which does not reflect the effects of the purchase price arbitration proceeding, is as 
follows: 

July 31, 
2003 

Proper-ty, plant and equipment, net $ 210,008 
Current assets 9,687 
Other long-term assets 14,204 
Assets held for sale, net 4,096 
Total assets acquired 237,995 

Current liabilities 
Long-term debt 
0 ther long- term liabilities 
Total liabilities assumed 

8,2 14 
7,170 

3 1,894 
47.278 

Net assets acquired $ 190,717 

The net property, plant and equipment balance includes accumulated depreciation of $91,296. The 
following supplemental pro forma information is presented to dustrate the effects of the Aquasource acquisition, 
which was completed on July 31,2003, on the historical operating resuIts for the year ended December 31,2003 
and 2002 as if the acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the respective periods (unaudted): 

Years Ended 
December 31, 
2003 2002 

Operating revenues 8 407,628 $ 391,569 
Net income 36 74,436 $ 72,420 
Net income per common share: 
Basic $ 0.81 36 0.80 
Diluted $ 0.81 $ 0.79 

The supplemental information is not necessarily representative of the actual results that may have 
occurred for these periods or of the results that may occur in the future. This information does not reflect the 
effects af recent rate increases ox cost savings that may result from the acquisition, such as the effects of a 
reduction in admunistrativc costs. This information is based upon the historical operating results of Aquasource 
for periods prior to the acquisition date oE July 31,2003 as provided to the Company by Aquasource, Inc. and 
DQE, Inc. management. 

0therAcpi.rition.r - O n  November 21,2003, Aqua America entered into a purchase agreement with &LE- 
Water Services, Inc., a subsidialry of ALLETE, Inc., to acquire the capital stock of Heater Uulities, Inc., which 
owns water and wastewater systems located in North Carolina. The purchase agreement provides for a cash 
purchase price of $48,000 and the assumption of approximately $28,000 in debt, reflecting an acquisition 
premium of approximately $18,000. The Company intends to seek the abdity to recover a portion of this 
premium through customer rates via the North Carolina Utilities Commission approval process. The acquisition, 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

- 
which is subject to regulatory approval, is expected to close in mid-2004. This acquisition will add approximately 
50,000 customers in the areas of suburban Raleigh, Charlotte, Gastonia and Fayettevdle, North Carolina. 

During 2003, in addition to the AquaSowce acquisition, the Company completed 17 acquisitions or other 
growth ventures in the various states in which the Company operates for an awegate purchase price of $1,614 in cash . 
The operating revenues included in the consolidated h a n d  statements during the period owned by the Company was 
$312. 

During 2002, the Company completed 25 acquisitions or other growth ventures in various states. The total 
purchase price of$11,659 for the systems acquired in 2002 consisted of $8,914 in cash and the issuance of 178,864 
shares of the Company’s common stock Operating revenues included in the consolidated hnancial statements related 
to the systems acquired in 2002 were $2,920 in 2003 and $1,341 in 2002. 

Duhg  2001, the Company completed 20 acquisitions or other growth ventures hcludmg the Company’s entry 
into North Carolina. The total purchase price of $14,878 for the systems acquired in 2001 consisted of $9,517 in cash 
and the issuance of 414,638 shares of the Company’s common stock Operating revenues included in the consolidated 
financial statements related to the systems acquired in 2001 were $4,647 in 2003, $4,736 in 2002 and $3,432 in 2001. 

On February 4,2003, the Company entered into a mutual termination agreement with Pennichuck Corporation 
terminating Aqua America’s planned acquisition of Permichuck Corporation, which was originally announced in Apd 
2002. The mutual decision to terminate the merger agrcement was prinanly in response to a referendum of the City of 
Nashua, New Ihrnpshm, authorizing Nashua to pursue the acquisition, by an eminent domain proceeding or 
otherwise, of all or a portion of Pennichuck Corporation’s water works systcm, and was considered to be in the best 
interests o€ both companies. 

Disbositions 

In May 2003, the Company announced agreements for the sale of the AquaSource regulated and 
nonregulated operations located in Connecticut and New York to a New England-based water company for an 
aggregate purchase price of $5,000 and the assumption of approximately $800 of debt. The sale of the 
Conneticut operations closed on October 31,2003 and provided proceeds of $4,000. The sale of the New York 
operations is expected to occur in mid-2004+ The combined operations in New York and Connecticut 
represented approximately 2% of the operations acquired from Aquasource, Inc. 

In December 2002, as a result of the settlement of a condemnation action, the Company’s Ohio 
operating subsidary sold to Ashtabula County, Ohio the water utility assets in the unincorporated areas of 
Ashtabula County and the area within the Village of Geneva on the Lake for $12,118, net of certain closing costs. 
The sale was in excess of the book value for these assets and the sale generated a gain of $5,676 (or an after-tax 
gain of $3,690 and $0.04 per share) recorded in the fourth quarter of 2002. We continue to operate this water 
system for Ashtabula County, beginning after the closing of the sale, under a multi-year operating contract that 
was recently renewed. The water utility assets sold represent less than 1% oE our total assets, and the total 
number of customers included in the water system sold represents less than 1% of our total customer base. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

ProDerty? Plant and EQuizlment 

Utility plant and equipment: 
Mains and accessories 
Services, hydrants, treatment 

plants and reservoirs 
Operations structures and water tanks 
Miscellaneous pumping and 

purification equipment 
Meters, data processing, transportation 

and operating equipment 
Land and other non-depreciable assets 

Utillty Plant and equipment 
Utility construction work in progress 
Net utility plant acquisition adjustment 
Non-utillty plant and equipment 
Total property, plant and equipment 

December 3 1, Approximate range 
2003 2002 of remaining lives 

962,439 $ 815,066 

547,622 
175,663 

259,468 

251,721 

432,564 
140,796 

182,415 

194,073 
58,223 51,317 

2,255,136 1,816,231 , 

92,106 
(48,054) 

3,116 2,907 
$ 2,302,304 1,836,892 

Accounts Receivable 
December 31, 

2003 2002 

Billed utdity revenue 
Unbilled utility revenue 
0 ther 

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 
Net accounts receivable 

$ 41,843 $ 34,733 
23,876 26,007 
2,452 520 

68,171 6 1,260 
5,851 3,580 

$ 6  2,320 $ 57 ,680 

33 to 85 years 

5 to 68 years 
18 to 61 years 

12 to 50 years 

5 to 50 years 

0 to 20 years 
2 to 40 years 

The Company’s customers are located principally in the following states: 54% in Pennsylvania, 11% in Ohio, 
8% in Illinois, 7% in Texas, 6”/0 in New jersey and qP/o in Indiana. No single customer accounted for more than one 
percent of the Company’s operating revenues during the years ended December 31,2003,2002 or 2001. The following 
table summarizes the changes in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts: 

2003 2002 2001 

Balance at January 1, 
Amounts charged to expense 
Accounts written o€f 
Recoveries of accounts written of€ 
Allowance acquired through acquisitions 
Balance at December 31, 

3,580 $ 2,482 96 1,907 
2,643 3,182 2,557 

253 291 197 
(2,7 15) (273 7 5) (2,179) 

8 5,851 8 3,580 $ 2,482 
2,090 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Redatorv Assets and Liabilities 

The regulatory assets represent costs that are expected to be My recovered from customers in hture rates 
while regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are expected to be refunded to customers in hture rates or amounts 
recovered from customers in advance of incurring the costs. Except for income taxes and the competitive transition 
charge payment, regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities are excluded from the Company’s rate base and do not e m  a 
return. The components of regulatory assets and (liabilities) are as follows: 

Income taxes, asset 
Income taxes, liability 
CTC payment 
Postretirement benefits 
Merger Costs 
Water tank painting 
Utdity plant retirement costs, asset 
Utility plant retirement costs, liability 
Rate case f h g  expenses & other 

December 31, 
2003 2002 

$ 68,917 .$ 67,658 

8,026 9,172 
6,698 8,334 
2,700 3,229 
3,240 2,114 

13,699 1 1,089 
(7,484) (6,951) 
6,399 1,242 

$ 9  3,761 8 9 2,313 

(3,434) (3,574) 

Items $sing rise to deferred state income taxes, as well as a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related to 
certain differences between tax and book depreciation expense, are recognrzed in the rate setting process on a cash or 
flow-through basis and will be recovered as they reverse. The regulatory asset associated with the Competitive 
Transition Charge (“CTC”) payment represents the full payoff in 2001, net o€amortization, of the allocable share of a 
CTC as negotiated by Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. from its elect& distribution company, PECO Energy Company. The 
Pennsylvania Electricity Generation Customer Choice and Competition Act permitted electric distribution utilities to 
recover their stranded costs from its customers in the form of a CTC. Rate recovery of the $11,465 CTC payment 
began in 2000 and is expected to conclude in 2010. 

Postretirement benefits include pension and other postretirement benefits. The pension costs include deferred 
net pension expense in excess of amounts funded which the Company believes will be recoverable in future years as 
pension funding is required, and in addtion includes an additional minimum liabihty for pensions as a result of a deche 
in the fair market value of plan assets and a decline in the dlscomt rate assumed for pension obhgations. The addtional 
minimum liability equals the excess of the accumulated benefit obligation over the fair value of plan assets. The 
regulatory asset related to postretircment benefits other than pensions represents costs that were deEerred between the 
time that the accrual method oE accounting for these benefits was adopted in 1993 and the recognition oE the accrual 
method in the Company’s rates as prescribed in subsequent rate f i g s .  Amortization of the amount deferred for 
postretirement benefits other than pensions began in 1994 and is currently being recovered in rates. 

The regulatory asset related to the recovery of merger costs represents the portion of the Consumers Water 
Company merger costs that d be recovered in rates as a result of a rate settlement in 2000 and is being amortized over 
the recovery period. Expenses associated with water tank painting are deferred and amortized over a period of time as 
approved in the regulatory process. The regulatory asset for utility plant retirement costs, including cost oEremoval, 
represents costs already incurred that are expected to be recovered in future rates over a five year recovery period. The 
regulatory liability for utillty plant retirement costs represents amounts recovered through rates during the life of the 
associated asset and before the costs are kcuwed. The qyhtory asset related tu rate case f i g  expenses represents the 
costs associated with h g  for rate increases that are deferred and amortized over periods that generally range from one 
to three years. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Income Taxes 

The provision for income taxes consists of: 

Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

Current: 
Federal 
State 

Deferred: 
Federal 
State 

Total tax expense 

$ 11,933 $ 16,619 $ 18,935 
7,249 6,647 5,106 

19,182 23,266 24,041 

25,521 17,921 13,048 
1,220 859 1,887 

26,741 18,780 14,935 
$ 45,923 8 42,046 $ 38,976- 

The statutory Federal tax rate is 35% and for states with a corporate net income tax, the state corporate net 
income tax rates range &om 5.50% to 9.99% for all years presented. The Company’s Federal income tax returns for all 
years through 1999 have been closed. 

The reasons for the differences between amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate 
to income before income tax expense are as follows: 

Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

Computed Federal tax expense at statutory rate 
Increase in tax expense for depreciation expense 

Merger transaction costs 
Charitable contribution 
Deduction for Aqua America common dividends 

Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
Prior: year rate reductions 
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 
Other, net 
Actual income tax expense 

to be recovered in future rates 

paid under employee benefit plan 

$ 40,852 $ 38,238 34,680 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

- 
The tax effects of temporary differences between book and tax accounting that give rise to the deferred tax 

assets and deferred tax liabhties are as follows: 

Deferred tax assets: 
Customers' advances for construction 
Costs expensed for book hot deducted 

for tax, principally accrued expenses 
U&ty plant acquisition adjustment 
basis differences 

Total gross deferred tax assets 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Utility plant, principally due to 
depreciation and differences in the basis 
of fixed assets due to variation in tax 

' and book accounting 
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up 

of revenues necessary to recover, in rates, 
the efkct of temporary differences 

Deferred investment tax credit 
Unrealized gain an  marketable securities 
0 ther 

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 

December 31, 
2003 2002 

$ 17,133 

6,525 

$ 17,787 

4,015 

21,784 
45.442 21 -802 

203,706 

24,634 
6,618 

141 
738 

177,620 

23,972 
6,903 

83 
524 

235.837 209.102 

Net deferred tax iiabhty $ 190,395 $ 187,300 

Commitments 

The Company maintains agreements with other water purveyors for the purchase of water to supplement its 
water supply, pdcularly during periods of peak demand. 'The agreements stipulate purchases of minimum quantities of 
water to the year 2026. T h e  estimated annual commitments related to such purchases are expected to approximate 
$7,404 through 2008. The Company purchased approximately $8,014, $7,079 and $5,807 of water under these 
agreements during the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

The Company leases motor vehcles, buildings and other equipment under operating leases that are 
noncancelable. During the next five years, $5,797 of future minimum lease payments are due: $2,098 in 2004, $1,647 in 
2005, $888 in 2006, $615 in 2007 and $549 in 2008. The Company leases parcels of land on which treatment plants and 
other fadties are situated and adjacent parcels that are used for watershed protection. The operating leases are 
noncancelable, expire between 2012 and 2052 and contain certain renewal provisions. Certain leases arc subject to an 
adjustment every five years based on changes in the Consumer Price Index. During each of the next five years, 
approximately $464 of lease payments for hd, subject to the aforesaid adjustment, are due. " h e  Company leases 
treatment plants to other parties under lease agreements that require payments to the Company of $567 in 2004, $567 in 
2005, $567 in 2006, $267 in 2007 and $308 in 2008. 

Rent expense was $2,993, $2,182 and $2,281 for the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, 
respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

- 
bnp-term Debt and Loans Pavable 

The Consolidated Statements of Capitalization provides a summary of long-term debt and loans 
outstanding as of December 31,2003 and 2002. The supplemental indentures with respcct to certain issues of 
the First Mortgage Bonds restrict the abllity of Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. and certain other operating subsidiaries 
of the Company to declare dividends, in cash or property, or repurchase or otherwise acquire the stock of these 
companies. As of December 31,2003, approximately $245,000 of Aqua Pennsylvania’s retained earnings and 
$52,000 of the retained earnings of certain other subsidiaries were free of these restrictions. Certain supplemental 
indentures also prohibit Aqua Pennsylvania and certain other subsidiaries of the Company from making loans to, 
or purchasing the stock of, the Company. 

Annual sinking hnd  payments are required for certain issues of First Mortgage Bonds by &e supplemental 
indentures. The future sinking fund payments and debt: maturities of the Company’s long-term debt we as follows: 

In teres t Rate Range 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter 

0.00% to 2.49% 
2.50% to 2.99% 
3.00% to 3.49% 
3.50% to 3.99% 
4.00% to 4.99% 
5.00% to 5.49% 

6.00% to 6.49% 
5.50% to 5.99% 

6.50% to 6.99% 
7.00% to 7.49% 
7.50% to 7.99% 
8.OO% to 8.49% 
8.50% to 8.99% 
9.00% to 9.49% 
9.50% to 9.99% 

$ 147 
13 

400 
- 

70 
10,000 
15,000 

12,040 

3 164 $ 136 
21 22 

400 400 

70 75 

644 
10,000 10,000 
28,040 2,040 

$ 135 
22 

400 

75 

144 
10,000 
2,040 

$ 135 
22 

400 

80 

10,172 

2,040 

- 

561 
1,155 

568 576 
1,155 2,195 

5 84 
995 

594 
5,995 

$ 16,151 
18,813 
5,618 

800 
143,135 
110,505 
66,260 
94,360 
12,000 

516 
23,000 
17,500 

50,922 
31,747 

9,000 

- 10.00% to 10.50% 6,000 
To tal $ 39,386 $ 40,418 $ 16,088 $ 14,395 $ 19,438 8 .  606 ,327 

Aqua Pennsylvania has a five-year $300,000 medium-term note program through December 2004 that 
provides for the issuance of long-term debt with maturities ranging between one and 35 years at fixed rates of 
interest, as determined at the time af issuance. The notes issued under this program are secured by the Thirty- 
Third Supplement to the trust indenture relating to Aqua Pennsylvania’s First Mortgage Bonds. In June 2002, 
Aqua Pennsylvania issued First Mortgage Bonds through the program of 325,OOO 5.93% Series due 2012. The 
proceeds from this issuance was used to h n d  acquisitions, to reduce the balance of Aqua Pennsylvania’s short- 
term debt and for Aqua Pennsylvania’s ongoing capital program. 

In July 2003, the Company issued $135,000 of unsecured notes due 2023 and with an interest rate of 
4.87%. The proceeds of t h s  financing was used to fund the acquisition of the Aquasource operations and to 
refinance existing debt. In July 2003, the Company also issued a $90,000 unsecured note payable and the 
proceeds were also used to fund the acquisition of the Aquasource operations. In August 2003, the $90,000 note 
payable was repaid with the proceeds from an equity offering. At various tirnes during 2003, Aqua Pennsylvania, 
other operating subsidiaries and the Company issued other notes payable, fEst mortgage bonds and tax-exempt 
bonds in aggregate of $27,894 at a weighted average interest rate of 4.50% due at various times ranging from 
2013 to 2032. The proceeds from these issuances were used to reduce a portion of the balance of the short-term 
debt at each of the respective operating subsidiaries, to redeem $7,000 of first mortgage bonds of operating 
subsidiaries with a weighted average interest rate of 6.35% and redeem the Company’s preferred stock of $172. 
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AQUA AMENCA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

As of December 31,2003, the Trustees for four issues held $28,438 pending completion of the projects financed 
with the issues and are reported in the consolidated balance sheet as funds restricted for construction activity. In 
connection with the acquisition of the Aquasource operations iil July 2003, the Company assumed $8,131 of 
long-term debt of which $7,415 was retircd during 2003. 

- 

In June 2002, Aqua Pennsylvania issued $25,000 tax-exempt bonds due in 2032 at a rate of 5.55%. In 
December 2002, Aqua Pennsylvania issued $25,000 tax-exempt bonds due in 2032 at a xate of 5.15%. The 
proceeds from the bonds issued are restricted to hnding the costs of: certain capital projects, At various times 
during 2002, Aqua Pennsylvania and other operating subsidiaries issued notes payable and tax-exempt bonds in 
aggregate of $47,765 at a weighted average interest rate of 4.32% due at various times rangulg from 2007 to 2032. 
The proceeds from these issuances were used to reduce a portion of the balance of the short-tern debt at each of 
the respective operating subsidiaries, to redeem $26,835 of First Mortgage Bonds of operating subsidiaries 
ranging from 3.75% to 5.6% and redeem Aqua America preferred stock of $944. In connection with acquisitions 
completed in 2002, $6,313 of long-term debt was assumed as a result of acquisitions at an interest rate of 1% due 
in various years. The weighted average cost of long-term debt at December 31,2003 and 2002 was 6.19% and 
6.56%, respectively. 

In October 2002, a 364-day note payable of $22,000 was issued by the Company, the proceeds of which 
were used to repurchase shares of Aqua America common stock from Veolia Environnement, SA.  (formerly 
Vivend Environnement, S.A.) Interest under this EaciLity was based, at the borrower’s option, on either a defined 
base rate or an adjusted London Interbank Ofkred Rate corresponding tu the interest period selected. This note 
payable was redeemed in May 2003 with a portion of the proceeds from a comrnsn stock offering. 

Aqua Pennsylvania has a $70,000 364-day revolving cre&t facillty with four banks and the Company has 
a $20,000 364-day bank revolving credrt fachty. Funds borrowed under these agreements are classified as loans 
payable and awe used to provide working capital. As of December 31,2003 and 2002, hnds  borrowed under the 
Aqua Pennsylvania revolving credit agreements were $52,068 and $35,664, respectively, and $19,801 and $12,902 
were borrowed under the Company’s revolving credit agreement, respectively. Interest under these facilities is 
based, at the borrower’s option, on the p f i e  rate, an adjusted federal funds rate, an adjusted London Interbank 
Offered Rate corresponding to the interest period selected, an adjusted Ewo-Rate corresponding to the interest 
period selected or at rates offered by the banks. Thesc agreements restrict the total amount of short-term 
borrowings of Aqua Pennsylvania and the Company. A commitment €ee ranging from 1 J4 to 1 / 3 0 of 1 ‘/o is 
charged on the unused portion of the revolving credt agreements. The average cost of borrowing under these 
facilrties was 1.6% and 2.3%, and the average borrowing was $62,528 and $63,529, during 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $73,079 in 2003 and $83,836 
in 2002. 

At December 31,2003 and 2002, the Company had combined short-term h e s  of credit of $88,000 and 
$90,000, respectively. Funds borrowed under these lines are classified as loans payable and are used to provide 
working capital. The average borrowing under the lines was $50,353 and $48,527 during 2003 and 2002, 
respectively. The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $73,700 in 2003 and $75,575 
in 2002. Interest under the lines is based at the Company’s option, depending on the line, on the prime rate, an 
adjusted Euro-Rate, an adjusted federal funds rate or at rates offered by the banks. The average cost of 
borrowings under all h e s  during 2003 and 2002 was 2.4% and 2.8%, respectively. 

Interest income oE $395, $287 and $367 was netted against interest expense on the consolidated 
statements of income for the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. The total interest 
cost was $45,057, $40,683 and $40,226 in 2003,2002 and 2001, indudmg amounts capitalized of $2,127, $1,389 
and 3 1,222, respectively. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial S taternents (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The  carrying amount of current assets and liabihties that are considered financial instruments approximates 
their fair value as of the dates presented. The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term 
debt are as follows: 

December 3 1, 
2003 2002 

Carrying amount 
Estimated fair value 

$ 736,052 $ 617,175 
781,502 660,436 

The fair value of long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash flows using current 
market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration. The Company’s customers’ advances 
for construction and related tax deposits have a carrying value of $72,500 and $69,790 at December 31,2003 and 2002, 
respectively. Their relative fair values cannot be accurately estimated because future r e h d  payments depend on several 
variables, including new customer connections, customer consumption levels arid &me rate increases. Pomons of 
these non-interest bearing hstnunents are payable annually through 2017 and amounts not paid by the contract 
expiration dates become non-refhdable. The fair value of these amounts would, however, be less than their carryLfig 
value due to the non-interest beating feature. 

Prekrred Stock 

At December 31,2003, the Company had 1,770,819 shares of Series Preferred Stock with a $1.00 par 
value authorized, of which 100,000 shares are designated as Series A Preferred Stock. During 1996, the Company 
designated and issued in connection with an acquisition 32,200 shares as Series B Preferred Stock, $1.00 par 
value. The Series A Preferred Stock, as well as the undesignated shares of Series Preferred Stock, remains 
unissued. The Series €3 Preferred Stock was recorded on the consolidated balance sheet at its liquidation value of 
$100 per share. AU but 172 shares were liquidated during 2002, and in December 2003, the remaining 172 shares 
o€ Series B Pre€erred Stock were redeemed as provided under the provisions of the issue through the issuance of 
debt with a five-year maturity a t  an interest rate of 6.05% per annum. As of December 31,2003, the Company 
did not have any preferred stock outstandmg and has provided for all dividends accrued on the Series 33 Preferred 
Stock. 

Stockholders’ Equitv 

At December 31,2003, the Company had 100,000,000 shares of common stock authorized; pax value $0.50. 
Shares outstanding at December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 were 92,589,040,84,895,543 and 85,483,086, respectively. 
Treasury shares held at December 31,2003,2002 and 2001 were 681,384, 2,151,350 and 913,877, respectively. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

The following table summarizes the activity of common stockholders' equity: 
Accumulated 

Capital in 0 ther 
excess.of Retained Comprehensive Common Treasury 

Balance at December 31,2000 
Net income 
0 ther comprehensive hcorine, 

net oE income tax of $19 
Reclassification adjustment for 

gains reported in net income, 
net of hcome tax of $127 

Dividends 
Stock split 
Stock issued for acquisitions 
Sale of stock 
Repurchase of stock 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Exercise of stock options 
Employee stock plans tax benefits 
Balance at December 31,2001 
Net income 
Other comprehensive income, 

net of income tax of $56 
Reclassification adjustment for 

gains reported in net income, 
net olincome tax of $412 

Dividends 
Stock issued for acquisitions 
Sale of stock 
Repurchase of stock 
Equity compensation Plan 
Exercise of stock options 
Employee stock plans tax benefits 
Balance at December 31,2002 
Net income 
Other comprehensive income, 

net of income tax of $244 
Recla s s i fica tion ad j us tm e n t for 

gains reported in net income, 
net of income tax of $186 

Dividends 
Stock split 
Sale of stock 
Repurchase of stock 
Equity Compensation Plan 
Exercise of stock options 
Employee stock plans tax benefits 
Balance at December 31,2003 

stock stock par value earnings Income Total 
3 27,260 $ (15,346) $ 291,013 $ 123,911 $ 926 $ 427,764 

60,005 

6,829 
133 
128 

3 
297 

672 
(2,493) 

(6,829) 

5,783 
5,228 

141 
6,642 
2,06 1 

- 60,005 

39 39 

(239) 
(34,234) 

5,361 
6,583 

1 44 
6,939 
2.06 1 

(239) 
(34,234) 

- (2,493) 

34,650 (17,167) 304,039 149,682 726 471,930 
67,154 67,154 

104 104 

855 
(24,109) 

(767) (767) 

161 6,220 - 7,23 6 

137 3,237 - 3,374 

(3 6,789) (36,789) 
71 2,674 2,745 

(24,109) 
15 598 61 3 

1,103 1,103 
35,034 (40,421) 317,871 180,047 63 472,534 

- 70,785 70,785 

455 455 

(3 9,9 17) 
(347) 

(39,917) 

2,168 29,163 99,031 130,362 

8 344 352 
181 4,283 4,464 

723 723 
3 46,635 3 ( 12,611) $ 413,008 3 210,915 $ 171 $ 65 8,118 

(347) 

9,244 (9,244) 

(1 9 3  5 3) - (1,353) 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

- 
In August 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a 5-for4 comman stock split to be effected 

in the form of a 25% stock disuibution for all common shares outstanding, to shareholders of record on 
November 14,2003. Common shares outstanding do not include shares held by the Company in treasury. The 
new shares were distributed on December 1,2003. The Company’s par value of $0.50 per share remained 
unchanged and $9,244 was transferred from Capital in Excess of Par Value to Common Stock to record the split. 
All share and per share data for all periods presented have been restated to give effect to the stock split. 

In April 2003, the Company fded a universal shelf registration with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission to allow for the sale, over time, of up to $250,000 of various debt and equity securities, including 
common stock. To date, the Company has issued common stock in two transactions under the universal shelf 
registration: 

In May 2003, the Company issued 1,868,750 shares of common stock in a public offering for proceeds 
of $33,100, net of expenses. The net proceeds were used to repay short-term debt, including the 
repayment of $22,000 of indebtedness incurred in connection with the Company’s repurchase of 
1,513,275 shares of common stock from afffiates of Veolia Environnement, S.A. (formerly Vivendi 
Environnement, S.A.) in October 2002. 

In August 2003, the Company issued 5,000,000 shares of common stock in a public offering for 
proceeds of $90,100, net of expenses. The net proceeds were used to repay an unsecured note of 
$90,000. The indebtedness was incurred by Aqua America in connection with the acquisition of the 
operations that were purchased from Aquasource, Inc. 

The balance remaining available for use under the univexsal shelf regstration as of December 31,2003 is 
$121,895. In addtion, the Company has a shelf registration statement fded with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission to permit the offering from time to time of shares of common stock and shares of preferred stock 
for acquisitions. During 2002 and 2001,178,664 and 414,638 shares of common stock totaling $2,745 and 
$5,361, respectively, were issued by the Company to acquire water and wastewater systems. The balance 
remaining available for use under the acquisition shelf registration as of December 31,2003 is 2,218,947 shares. 
The form and terms of such securities shall be determined when and if these securities are issued under these 
shelf registrations. 

In May 2002, Veolia Environnement, S.A. whch through its affihates (collectively ‘‘3%”) owned 
approximateIy 16.8% of our outstanding c u m o n  stock, advised the Company of their decision to sell its 
investment in Aqua America, Inc. VE announced that its decision was part of its overall strategy to divest non-core 
assets and focus on other business strategies. In September 2002, in order to facilitate the orderly re-distribution of 
the shares held by VE into the market, the Company completed a secondary offering of 12,356,570 shares of Aqua 
America common stock held by VE. The number of outstanding shares of common stock was not changed and the 
Company I d  not receive any proceeds as a result of this secondary offering. In addition, in October 2002 the 
Company repurchased 1,513,275 shares of Aqua America, Inc. common stock representing the remainder of the 
shares of Aqua America, Inc. common stock held by VE. The repurchase of shares was Eunded with proceeds of 
$22,000 from a short-term c r d t  facilrty. In May 2003, this $22,000 short-term credit Cachty was repaid with a 
portion of the funds from the issuance of 1,868,750 shares of corntnon stock through a shelf regstration as 
described above. 

In addition, the Board of Directors has authorized the Company to purchase its common stock, horn time to 
time, in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. The Company has not repurchased any shares 
under this autho&ation since 2000. As of December 31,2003,411,209 shares remain available for purchase by the 
Company. 

The Company has a Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan (‘?)].an’’) that allows reinvested 
dividends to be used to purchase origmal issue shares of common stock at a hve percent dtscount horn the a m e n t  
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

market value. Under the direct stock purchase progam, shares are purchased by investors at market price and the 
shares are purchased by the Company’s transfer agent in the open-market at least weekly. D&g 2003,2002 and 2001, 
under the dividend reinvestment portion of the P h ,  395,605,402,084 and 379,883 original issue shares of common 
stock were sold providing the Company with proceeds of $7,000, $6,407 .md $5,980, respectively. 

The Company reports comprehensive income in accordance With SFAS No. 130, “Reporting 
Comprehensive Income.” AccordulgIy, the Company’s accumulated other comprehensive income €or unrealized 
gains on securitics is reported in the Stockholders’ Equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the 
related other comprehensive income is reported in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive 
Income. 

Net Income Der Common Share and Equity per Common Share 

Basic net income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. 
Diluted net income per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding and 
potentidy dilutive shares. The dilutive effect of employee stock options is included in the computation of 
Diluted net income per share. The following table summarizes the shares, in thousands, used in computing Basic 
and Diluted net income per share: 

Average commun shares outstanding during 

Dilutive ef€ect of employee stock options 
Average common shares outstanding during 

the period for Basic computation 

the period for Diluted computation 

Years ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

88,275 85,674 84,841 
969 864 1.102 

89,244 86,538 85,943 

Equity per common share was $7.1 1 and $5.80 at December 31,2003 and 2002, respectively. These amounts 
were computed by dividing common stockholders’ equity by the number of shares of common stock outstanding at the 
end of each year. 

Shareholder Rkhts Plan 

The Company has a Shareholder Rghts Plan designed to protect the Company’s shareholders in the event of an 
unsolicited unfair offer to acquire the Company, Each outstanding common share is entitled to one Rght which is 
evidenced by the common share certificate. In the event that any person acquires 20% or more of the outstanding 
common shares or commences a tender or exchange offer which, if consummated, would result in a person or 
corporation owning at least 20% of the outstanding common shares of the Company, the Rights will begin to trade 
independently from the common shares and, if certain circumstances o c m ,  inclucitng the acquisition by a person of 
20% or more of the outstandmg c o r n o n  shares, each %ht would then entitle its holder to purchase a number of 
co rnon  shares of the Company at a substantial discount. If the Company is involved in a merger or other business 
combination at any time aEter the Rights become exercisable, the Rights will entitle the holder to acquire a certain 
number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company at a substantial discount. The Rghts are redeemable by 
the Company at a redemption price of $.01 per Right at any time before the Qhts become exercisable. The Rtghts will 
expire on March 1,2008, unless previously redeemed. 
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AQUA AhIEIUCA, INC. AND SUBSIDLARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Employee Stock and Incentive Plan 

Under the 1994 Equity Compensation Plan (CTlan”), the Company may grant q d f i e d  and non-qualified stock 
options to officers, key employees and consultants. Officers and key employees may also be granted dividend 
equivalents and restricted stock Restricted stock may also be granted to non-employee members of the Board of 
Directors (‘TBoard’’). In May 2003, the Shareholders authorized a 3,500,000 share increase in the shares available for 
issuance under the Plan. The maximum number of shares that may be subject to grants under the Plan to any one 
individual in any one year is 150,000. Awards under this plan are made by a committee of the Board of Directors. 

Options under the plan were issued at the market price of the stock on the day of the grant. Options are 
exercisable in installments of 33% annually, starting one year from the date of the grant and expire 10 years from 
the date of the grant. The following table summarizes stock option transactions for the plan: 

Options : 
Outs tanding, beginning of year 
Granted 
Terminated 
Exercised 
Outs tanding, end of year 

Exercisable, end of year 

As of or For the Years Ended December 31, 
2003 2002 2001 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 
Exercise Exercise Exercise 

Shares Price Shaes Price Shares Price 

2,830,133 3 12.06 2,559,763 $ 10.66 2,829,754 8 8.55 
6 1 3,6 54 16.98 617,813 26.64 669,599 15.28 
(15,533) 14.78 (8,265) 12,99 (22,729) 9.70 

(434,833) 10.28 (339,178) 9.82 (91 6,861) 7.51 
2,993,421 $ 13.31 2,830,133 $ 12.06 2,559,763 10.66 

1,756,300 8 11.01 1,555,483 $ 9.70 1,269,635 $ 8-63 

Options exercised during 2003 ranged in price from $4.38 per share to $1G.65 per share. At December 31,2003, 
4,984,151 options under the Plan were s t i l l  available for grant The following table summarizes the price ranges of the 
options outstanding and options exercisable as of December 31,2003 

Options Outs tandtng Options Exercisable 
Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average 

Remaining Exercise 
Shares h f e  (years) Price 

Range of prices: 
3 4.56 - 7.99 419,291 2.3 $ 6.18 
$ 8.00 - 9.99 320,558 6.3 9.39 
$10.00 - 12.99 489,839 4.9 11-30 
$13.00 - 15.99 556,918 7.3 15.28 
$16.00 - 16.99 1,084,944 8.8 16.65 
$17.00 - 18.34 121,871 9.4 18.32 

2,9 93,42 1 6.7 $ 13.31 

Shares 

Average 
Exercise 

Price 

419,291 
320,558 
489,839 
338,294 
188,318 

6.1 8 
9.39 

11.10 
15.28 
16.65 

- 
1,756,300 $ 11.01 

Under SFAS No. 123 “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and SFAS No. 148 “Accounting for 
Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure”, the Company elects to continue to apply the provisions of 
APB Opinion No. 25 and to provide the pro forma disclosure provisions o€ h s  statement. Accordingly, no 
compensation cost has been recognized in the financial statements for stock options that have been granted. 
Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended 
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AQUA AIv~J~UCA, TNC. AND SUBSIDLANES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) - 

by SFAS No. 148, pro forma net income avadable to common stock and &gs per share are presented in the 
S u . m m q  of Significant Accounting Policies - Stock-Based Compensation as if compensation cost for stock options was 
determined as of the grant date under the fair value method 

Restricted stock awards provide the grantee with the rights of a shareholder, includmg the right to receive 
dividends and to vote such shares, but not the right to sell or otherwise transfer the shares during the restriction period. 
pxlring 2003,2002 and 2001,20,156,37,031 and 9,844 shares of restricted stock were granted with a restriction period 
ranging from six to 36 months. The value of restricted stock awards, which are LLcompensatory‘7, is equal to the €air 
market value of the stock on the date of the grant and is amortized ratably over the restriction period. 

Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits 

n e  Company mainbins a qualified, defined benefit pension plan that covers a majority of its full-time 
employees who were hired prior to Apd 1,2003. Ketirement benefits under the plan are genedy based on the 
employee’s total years of service and compensation during the last five years of employment. The Company’s policy is 
to fund the plan annudy at a level which is deductible for income tax purposes and which provides assets sufficient to 
meet its pension obligations. To offset c& limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code with respect to 
payments under qualified plans, the Company has a non-qualified Excess Benefit Plan for Salaried Employees in order 
to prevent certain employees from being penalized by these lunitations. The Company also has non-qualified 
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans for certain current and retired employees. The net pension costs and 
oblrgations of the quahfied and non-quahfied plans are included in the tables which follow. Employees hired after April 
1,2003 may participate in a defined contribution plan that provides a Company matching contribution on amounts 
contributed by participants and an annual profit-sharing contcibution based upon a percentage of the eligible 
partiupan ts ’ compensation. 

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Company offers certain Postretirement Benefits other 
than Pensions (“PBOPs”) to employees hired before April 1,2003 and retiring with a mifiirnurn level of service. 
These PBOPs include continuation of medlcal and prescription drug benefits €or eligible retirees and life 
insurance benefits for certain eligible retirees. The Company funds its gross PBOP cost through various trust 
accounts. The benefits of retired officers and certain other retirees are paid by the Company and not fiom plan assets 
due to limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. 

On December 8,2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 
(the “Act”) was signed into law which would provide plan sponsors a federal subsidy for certain qualiEying 
prescription drug benefits covered under the sponsor’s postretirement health care plans. The Company is 
currently reviewing the impact of the Act and has elected to defer recognition of the benefit to its postretirement 
health care plans in accardance with FASB Staff Position No. 106-1, “Accounting and Disclosure Requirements 
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2OO3.” Any measures of 
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and net periodic PBOP cost for the year ended Decembet 31, 
2003 do not reflect the effects of the Act. Currently, specific authoritative accounting guidance for the federal 
subsidy is pending and that guidance when issued may require the Company to change previously reported 
in formation. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dallars, except per share amounts) 

The  changes in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets, the funded status of the plans and the 

- 

assumptions used in the measurement of the company’s benefit obbt ion are as follows: 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation atJanuary 1, 
Service cost 
Interes t cost 
Plan amendments 
Actuarial loss 
Plan participants’ contributions 
Benefits paid 
Benefit obligation at December 31, 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at January 1, 
Actual return on plan assets 
Employer contributions 
Benefits paid 
Fair value af plan assets at December 31, 

Funded status of plan: 
Funded status at December 31, 
Unrecognized actuarial loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost 
Unrecognized net transition obligation 
Accrued benefit costs 

Pension Benefits 
2003 2002 

Other 
Postretirement Benefits 

2003 2002 

$ 131,059 
3,627 
8,999 

12,222 

3 119,667 
3,205 
8,501 

170 
5,104 

(5,309) (5,588) 
150,098 131,059 

$ 25,436 $ 22,317 
987 840 

1,703 1,620 
- 

1,978 
513 

1,574 
342 

(1,483) (1,257) 
29,134 25,436 

94,438 113,330 12,200 12,216 

81 65 2,345 2,067 
(5,809) (5,588) (970) (925) 

20,021 (13,3G9) 816 (1,168) 

108,731 94,438 14,39 1 12,200 

41,367 36,621 14,743 13,236 

(1,942) (2,337) 590 647 
1,227 (8,034) 

$ 13,488 $ 5,249 $ 3,010 

(29,164) (30,47 I) (4,8 5 7) (2,839) 

The Company’s pension plans had an accumulated benefit obltgation of $121,521 and $106,053 at December 
31,2003 and 2002, respectively. The following table provides the net liability r e c o p e d  on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets at December 31,: 

Pension Benefits 
Other 

Postretirement Benefits 

Prepaid benefits cost 
Accrued benefit cost 
Additional minimum liability 
Intangible assets 
Accumulated other 

Net liabhty recognized 
comprehensive income 

2003 2002 2003 2002 
8 -  $ 1,919 $ 937 $ 1,225 

(1 1,488) (7 9 1  68) 
(2,003) (5,989) 
1,962 1,258 

(4,235) 

41 4,731 - 
$ (11,488) $ (5 ,249) !$ (3,245) $ (3,0101 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

At December 31,2003 and 2002, the Company's pension plans had benefit obligations in excess of its phn 
assets. The following tables provide the projected benefit obligation, the accumulated benefit obligation and fair market 
value of the plan assets as of December, 31: 

Projected Benefit 
Obligation Exceeds 

the Fair Value of 
Plan Assets 

Projected benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

2003 2002 
$ 150,098 $ 131,059 

108,73 1 94,438 

Accumulated I3 ene fit 
Obligation Exceeds 

the Fair Value of 
Plan Assets 

2003 2002* 
Accumulated benefit obligation $ 121,521 $ 84,756 
Fair d u e  of plan assets 108,731 72,551 

"2002 data in this table excludes pension plan with plan assets in excess of accumulated benefit oblrgation. 

The following table provides the components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended December 31,: 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Amortization o€ transition 

Amortization of prior service cost 
Amortization of actuarial (gain) loss 
Amortization of regulatory asset 
Capitalized costs 
Rate-regulated adjustment 
Net periodic benefit cost 

Obligation (asset) 

Pension Benefits 
2003 2002 2001 

$ 3,627 3,205 $ 2,986 
8,999 8,501 8,261 

(7,775) (9,945) (10,891) 

(209) (209) (110) 
395 41 4 432 

1,282 (2) (528) 

(49) 
(553) 

(205) (66) 

$ 6,114 $ 1,898 $ ( 452) 

Other 
Postretirement Benefits 

2003 2002 2001 
$ 987 $ 840 $ 705 

1,703 1,620 1,427 
(917) (953) (947) 

803 803 803 
(57) (57) (57) 
62 (5) (179) 

136 136 136 
(598) (520) (475) 

3 2,119 $ 1,864 3l 1,413 

The rate-regulated adjustment set forth above is required for 2001 in order to reflect pension expense (credit) 
for the Company in accordance with the method used in establishing water rates. 

Accounting for pensions and other postretirement benefits requires an extensive use of assumptions about the 
discount rate, expected retum on plan assets, the rate of future compensation increases received by the Company's 
employees, mortality, turnover and medical costs. Each assumption is reviewed annually with assistance from the 
Company's actuarial consultant who provides guidance in estaablishmg the assumptions. The assumptions are selected 
to represent the average expected experience over t h e  and may differ in any one year from actual experience due to 
changes in capital markets and the overall economy. These differences will impact the amount of pension and other 
postretirement benefit expense that the Company recognizes. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

The significant assumptions related to the. Company’s pension and other postretirement benefit plans are as 
follows: 

Other 
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits 

2003 2002 2003 2002 
Weigh ted-aver age As sump ti0 ns Used 

to Determine Benefit Obligations 
as of December 31, 

Discount rate 
Rate of compensation increase 

6.25% 
4.0-5.O% 

6.75% 
4.0-5.0% 

6.25 ‘/o 

4.0% 
6.75% 
4.0% 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend 
Rates Used to Determine Benefit 
Obligations as of December 31, 

Health care cost trend rate 
Rate to whch the cost trend is assumed 

to decline (the ultimate ttend rate) 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate 

trend rate 

10% 10% 

5% 

2009 

5 % 

2006 

Weighced-average Assumptions Used 
to Deterrnine Net Periodic Benefit 
Costs for Years Ended December 31, 
Discount rate 
Expected return on plan assets 
Rate of cornpensation increase 

6.75% 
8.50% 

4.0 -5.0% 

7.25% 
9.00% 

4.0- 5.0°/o 

6.75% 
6. O- 9,O% 

4.0% 

7.25% 
6.0-8.O0/o 

4.0% 

Assumed Health Care Cost Trend 
Rates Used to Determine Net Periodic 
Benefit Costs for Years Ended December 31, 

Health care cost trend rate 
Rate to which the cast trend is assumed 

to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate 

trend rate 
n/a - Assumption is not applicable to pension benefits. 

IO% 

5% 

12YO 

2006 2006 

Assumed health-care trend rates have a significant effect on the expense and liabilities for other postretirement 
benefit plans. The health care trend rate is based on historical rates and expected market conditions. A one-percentage 
point change in the expected health-care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 

1 -Percentage- 1 -Percentage- 
Point Point 

Increase Decrease 
Effect on the health-care component of the 

accrued other postretirement benefit 
obligation 

Effect on total service and interest cost 
components of net periodic postretirement 
health-care benefit cost 

3 949 $ (860) 

$ 103 $ (95) 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(‘In thousands of dollm, except per share amounts) - 

The discount rate is based on a market rate €or a recognized-rahg agency’s h.gh-qu&ty long-term bond 
portfolio with durations matching the expected payouts under out: retirement plans. The Company’s pension 
expense and liability (benefit obligations) increases as the discount rate is reduced. 

The Company’s expected return on assets is determined by evaluating the asset class return expectations 
with its advisors as well as actual, long-term, historical results of our asset returns. The Company’s pension expense 
increases as the expected return an  assets decreases. The Company believes its actual long-term asset allocation on 
average will approximate the mgeted allocation. The Company’s investment strategy is to e m  a reasonable rate of 
return while maintaining risk at acceptable levels through the diversification of investments across and within various 
asset categories. Investment returns are compared to benchmarks that include the s&P 500 Index, the L e h a n  
Brothers Intermediate Govement/Credit Index, and a combination of the two indices. The Pension Committee of 
the Board of Directors meets sefi-annudy to revkw plan &vestments and management monitors investment 
performance quarterly through a performance report prepared by an external consulting h. 

The Company’s pension plan asset allocation and the target allocation by asset category are as follows: 

2004 
Target 

Allocation 
Ass et Category: 

Equity securities 6 5 O/o 

Debt securities 35% 
Cash 0% 
To tal 100% 

Percentage of Plan 
Assets at December 31, 

2003 2002 

66% 63% 
32% 35% 
2% 2% 

100% 100% 

Equity securities include Aqua America, Inc. common stock in the amounts of $6,469 or 5.9% of total plan 
assets and $4,701 or 5.0% of to& plan assets as of December 31,2003 and 2002, respectively. 

The asset allocation for the Company’s other postretirement benefit plans and the target allocation by asset 
category are as follows: 

2004 Percentage of Plan 
Target Assets at December 31, 

Allocation 2003 2002 
Asset Category: 

Cash 65% 64% 64% 
Equity securities 35% 36% 3 6% 
Total 100% 100% 100% 

Fundmg requirements €or qualified defined benefit pension plans are determined by government regulations 
and not by accounting pronouncements. In accordance with h n h g  d e s ,  during 2004 our pension contribution is 
expected to be $5,371. 

As of December 31,2003, the Company has an additional minimum liability of $41 associated with our 
defined benefit plan. ’I‘he additional minimurn liability is a result of the accumulated benefit oblgation exceeding the 
fair value of plan assets and results in the establishment of a regulatory asset, as the Company anticipates recovery of 
the future, increased pension expense through customer rates. An additional minimum liability of $4,731 was 
initially recorded on December 31,2002 as a result of a deche  in pension plan assets and a decrease in the assumed 
dlscount rate which resulted in an increase in pension fiabaties. The change. in the adhtional minuxlum liability from 
December 31,2002 to December 31,2003 resulted from an increase in the pension phn assets during 2003 due to 
positive equity market performance, offset partially by the effect of a decreased discount rate. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

The Company has 401 (k> savings plans that cover substantially all employees. The Company makes 
matching contributions that are invested in Aqua America, Inc. common stuck based on a percentage of an 
employee’s contribution, subject to certain limitations. The Company’s matching contribution, recorded as 
Compensation expense, was $921, $859 and $798 for the years ended December 31,2003,2002 and 2001, 
respectively. 

Water and Wastewater Rates 

In November 2003, the Company’s Pennsylvania opetating subsidmy, Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., filed an 
application with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (‘TAPUC”) requesting a $25,300 or 10.2% increase in 
annual revenues. The application is currentiy pending before the PAPUC and a final determination is anticipated by 
August 2004. 

On August 1,2002, the PAPUC granted Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. a $21,226 or 10.2% base rate increase. The 
rates in e€fect at the tine of the filing included $9,400 in Distribution System Improvement Charges ~DSIC”)  at 5.0%. 
Consequently, the total base rates increased by $30,626 and the DSIC was reset to zero. 

The Company’s other operating subsidaxies were allowed annual rate increases of $1,275 in 2003, $3,024 in 
2002 and $4,799 in 2001, represented by eight, M e e n  and nine rate decisions, respectively. Revenues from these 
increases realized kt the year of p t  were approximately $839, $1,403 and $4,200 in 2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

Four states in which the Company operates permit water udities, and in some states wastewater utilities, 
to add a surcharge to their water or wastewater bas to offset the additional depreciation and capital costs related 
to infrastructure sys tern replacement and rehabilitation projects completed and placed into service between base 
rate f&ngs. Currently, Pennsylvania, Iho is ,  Ohm and Indiana allow for the use of infrastructure rehabilitation 
surcharges. These mechanisms typically adjust periodically based on additional qualified capital expenditures 
completed or anticipated in a future period. ‘I’he infrastructure rehabihtation surcharge is capped as a percentage 
of base rates, generally 5% o€ base rates, and is reset to zero when new base rates that reflect the costs of those 
adddons become effective or when a utility’s earnings exceed a regulatory benchmark. Infrastructure 
rehabfitation surcharges provided revenues in 2003,2002 and 2001 of $8,147, $5,518 and $6,672, respectively. 
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Selected Ouarterlv Financial Data mnaudited) 
(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

First Second 

Aqua America, Inc. and Subsidiaries - 

Third Fourth 
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year 

2003 
Operating revenues $ 80,489 $ 83,379 $ 102,153 $ 101,212 8 367,233 
Operations and maintenance expense 30,664 3 1,029 36,777 42,132 140,602 
Net income available to cornrnon 

Basic net income per common share 
Diluted net income per common share 
Dividend paid per commoxl share 
Dividend declared per common share 
Price range of co rnon  stock 

stock 

- high 
- low 

13,324 
0.16 
0.16 

0.1 12 
0.112 

17.83 
15.77 

15,235 
0.18 
0.18 

0.112 
0.1 12 

19.85 
17.22 

19.69 
16.88 

20.00 
14.79 

23,620 
0.26 
0.26 

0.112 
0.232 

20.07 
18.28 

16.24 
12.82 

18,60G 
0.20 
0.20 

0.120 

22.40 
18.71 

2002 
Operating revenues $ 71,669 8 76,615 $ 91,918 $ 81,826 $ 322,028 
Operations and maintenance expense 27,235 28,915 31,143 30,392 11 7,735 
Net incame available to common 

stock 11,875 14,818 21,815 
Basic net income per common share 0.14 0.17 0.25 
Diluted net income per common share 0.14 0.17 0.25 

0.106 0. I06 0.106 Dividend paid per common share 

Price range of common stock 
Dividend declared per common share 0.1 OB 0.106 0.218 

- high 
- low 

18,646 
0.22 
0.22 

0.1 12 

17.50 
15.44 

70,785 
0.80 
0.79 

0.456 
0,456 

22.40 
15.77 

67,154 
0.78 
0.78 

0.430 
0.430 

20.00 
12.82 

All per share data as presented has been adjusted for the 2003 5-for4 common stock split effected in the 
form of a 25% stock distribution. High and low prices of the Company’s common stock are as reported on the 
New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. The cash dtvidends paid in December 2003 of $0.12 and December 
2002 of $0.112 were declared in August 2003 and August 2002, respectively. 

Beginning August 1,2003, the financial results for the operations acquired in the Aquasource acquisition 
have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. 

Net income available to cornon stock and net income per share for the fourth quarter of 2002 includes 
a net gain of $3,690 ($5,676 pre-tax) or $0.04 per share on the sale of a portion of ow Ashtabula, Oh10 water 
sys tern. 
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Summary of Selected Financial Data 
(in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts) 

Aqua America, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

1999* 2000"- Years ended December 31, 2003 (a) 2002" 2001 * 
PER COMMON SHAFE 

Income from operations before 
non-recurring items: @) 
Basic 
Diluted 

Net income @) 
Basic 
Diluted 

Cash dividends paid 
Cash dividends declared 
Return on average stockholders' equity (b) 
Book value at vear end 

$0.80 
0.79 

0.80 
0.79 
0.46 
0.46 

$7.1 1 
12.3% 

$0.74 
0.73 

0.78 
0.78 
0.43 
0.43 

13.9% 
$5.80 

$0.71 
0.70 

0.71 
0.70 
0.40 
0.40 

13.3% 
$5.52 

$0.62 
0.62 

0.65 
0.65 
0.38 
0.38 

13.2% 
$5.10 

$0.56 
0.56 

0.45 
0.45 
0.36 
0.36 

1O.l0/0 
$4.55 

J 

22.10 16.48 18.04 15.68 10.59 Market value at year end 
INCOME STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS: 

Operating revenues 
Depreciation and amortization 
Interest expense, net (c) 
Income before income taxes 
Provision €or income taxes 

$367,233 $322,028 $307,280 $274,014 $256,546 
5 1,463 44,322 40,168 34,100 3 1,903 
42,535 39,007 38,637 37,775 31,796 

11 6,7 18 109,252 99,087 86,995 62,9 1 5 
34,105 26,531 45,923 42,046 38,976 

Net income avadable to common stock @) 70,785 67,154 60,005 52,784 36,275 
BALANCE SHEET HIGHLIGHTS: 

Total assets $2,069,736 $1,7 17,069 $1,555,108 $1,413,723 $1,280,805 
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,824,291 1,486,703 1,364,282 1,249,652 1,135,230 
Stockholders' equity 659,030 493,097 472,717 430,587 367,141 
Long-term debt, including current portion 736,052 617,175 531,455 472,712 425,946 
Total debt 832,511 732,288 641,123 573,706 529,015 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
Net cash flows from operating activities 
Capital additions 
Cash expended for acquisitions of udllty systems 
Dividends on common stock 
Number of customers served 
Number oE shareholders of common stock 
Common shares outstanding (000) 
Employees (full-time) 

$143,373 
163,320 
192,331 
39,917 

749,49 1 
22,726 
92,589 

1.260 

$121,560 
136,164 

8,9 14 
36,789 

605,474 
21,389 
84,896 

97 1 

$102,165 
124,088 

9,517 
34,234 

20,920 
85,483 

95 1 

587,537 

$86,972 
129,740 

3,546 
30,406 

5 65,146 
20,978 
83,869 

943 

$74,103 
96,383 
39,164 
29,217 

21 ,I 87 
80,103 

945 

548,937 

*Share and per share data has been restated for the 2003 5-for-4 stock split. 
(a) Beginning August 1,2003, the fmancial results for the operations acquired in the AquaSource acquisition 

have been included in Aqua America's consolidated fmancial statements. 
@> Income per share from operations before non-recurring items is a measure that is not determined in accor- 

dance With GAAP and may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies. 
This Non-GMP measure should not be considered as an alternative to net income per share as determined 
in accordance with G M P .  We believe that this is useful as an indicator of operating performance, as we 
measure if for management purposes, because it provides a better understanding of OUT results of operations 
by highlighting our ongoing operations and the underlying profitability oE o w  core business. Non-recurring 
items include the following: the 2002 amounts include a net gain of $3,690 ($5,676 pre-tax) or $0.04 per share 
on the sale of a portion of our Ashtabula, Ohio water system; the 2000 amounts include a net gain of $2,236 
($4,041 pre-tax) or $0.03 per share for the partial recovery of the merger costs related to the merger with 
Consumers Water Company; and the 1999 amounts include a net charge of $8,596 ($10,121 pretax) or 
$0.11 per share for the merger transaction costs and related restructuring costs. 

used during construction. 
(c) Includes dividends on preferred stock of subsidmy and minority interest; net of allowance for hnds 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
fNVESTOR RELATIONS INFORMATION 

Financial reports and Investor Relations 
Copies of the company's public financial reports including annual reports and Forms 10-K and 10-Q are available on 
line and can be downloaded from the Investor Relations section of our website a t  www.aquaamerica.com. You may 
also obtain these reports by writing to us at: 

ATTN: Investor Relations 
Aqua America, inc. 
762 W. Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, PA 19010-3489 
www.aquaamerica.com 

Corporate Governance 
We are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance and implementing the corporate 
governance rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the New York Stock Exchange. Copies of our 
key corporate governance documents, including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of Ethical 8usiness 
Conduct, and the Charters of each Committee of our Board of Directors can be obtained from the Corporate 
Governance portion of the Investor Relations section of our website - www.aquaarnerica.com - or requests may be 
directed to  the address above. Amendments to the Code, and any grant of waiver from a provision of the Code 
requiring disclosure under applicable SEC rules will be disclosed on our website. As required under section 302 of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and Rule 13a-I4(a) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, Aqua America's Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have performed the required certification for 2003 without exception 
and their certifications were filed as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to our Form 10-K for 2003. You may access this report and 
our other SEC filings from our website. 

Annual Meetinq 
1O:OO a.m. Eastern Daylight Time 
Thursday, May 20, 2004 
Springfield Country Club 
400 West Sproul Road 
Springfield, PA 19064 

Transfer Aqent and Reqistrar 
EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. 
P.O. Box 43010 
Providence, RI 02940-301 0 
800-205-83 14 or 781 -575-3 100 
ww w.eq u i serve-co m 

I n d e pen den t Acco u n t a n t s  
Pricewaterhousecoopers LLP 
Two Commerce Square 
Suite 1700 
2001 Market St.  
Philadelphia, PA 191 03-7042 
Stock Exchanqes 
The Common Stock of the company is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Philadelphia Stock Exchange 
under the ticker symbol W T R .  The daily closing price is  printed in The Wall Street Journal as AquaAmer. Listings might 
vary in other major newspapers. 

Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan 
The company's Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan ("Plan") enables shareholders to reinvest all, or 
a designated portion of, dividends paid on up to 100,000 shares of Common Stock in additional shares of Common 
Stock a t  a five percent discount from a price based on the market value of the stock. In addition, shareholders may 
purchase additional shares of Aqua America Common Stock a t  any time with a minimum investment of $50, up to  a 
maximum of $250,000 annually. Individuals may become shareholders by making an initial investment of a t  least 
$500. A Plan prospectus may be obtained by calling EquiServe Trust Company a t  800-205-8314 or by visiting 
www.equiserve.com. Please read the prospectus carefully before you invest. Shares for the direct stock purchase 
portion of the Plan are purchased in the open market at prevailing market prices. 
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
INVESTOR RELATIONS INFORMATION 

IRA, Roth IRA, Education IRA 
An IRA, Roth IRA or Education IRA may be opened through the Plan to  hold shares of Common Stock of the company 
and t o  make contributions t o  the IRA to  purchase shares of Common Stock. Participants in the Plan may roll-over an 
existing IRA or other qualified plan distribution in cash into an IRA under the Plan t o  purchase the company's 
Common Stock. Participants may also transfer the company's Common Stock from a n  existing IRA into an IRA under 
the Plan. A prospectus, IRA forms and a disclosure statement may be obtained by calling EquiServe Trust Company at 
800-472-7428. Please read the prospectus carefully before you invest. 

* 

Direct Deposit 
With direct deposit, Aqua America cash dividends are deposited automatically on the dividend payment date of each 
quarter. Shareholders will receive confirmation of their deposit in the mail. Shareholders interested in direct deposit 
should call the Company's transfer agent at 800-205-8314. 

Delivery of  votina materials to shareholders sharina an address 
To reduce the expense of delivering duplicate voting materials to  our shareholders who have more than one Aqua 
America stock account, we are delivering only one annual report and proxy statement to registered shareholders 
who share an address unless otherwise requested. A separate proxy card is included in the voting materials for each 
of  these shareholders. 

How to obtain a separate set of votina materials 
If you are a registered shareholder who shares an address with another registered shareholder and have received only 
one set of voting materials for the 2004 annual meeting, you may write or call us t o  request a separate copy of this 
material a t  no cost t o  you at 610-645-1 196 or Attn: Investor Relations, Aqua America, Inc., 762 W. Lancaster Avenue, 
Bryn Mawr, PA, 19010. For future annual meetings, you may request separate voting material by calling the 
Company's transfer agent a t  800-205-83 14. 

Account Access 
Aqua America has paid dividends since 1946. The normal Common Stock dividend dates for 2004 and the first six 
months of  2005 are: 
Declaration Date 
February 3, 2004 
May 3, 20U4 
August 3, 2004 
October 5, 2004 
February 1, 2005 
May 3, 2005 

Ex-0 ivid end Date 
February 12, 2004 
May 12, 2004 
August 12, 2004 
November 11, 2004 
February 11, 2005 
May 12, 2005 

Record Date 
February 16, 2004 
May 14, 2004 
August 16, 2004 
November 15, 2004 
February 14' 2005 
May 16, 2005 

Payment Date 
March 1, 2004 
June 1, 2004 
September 1, 2004 
December 1, 2004 
March 1, 2005 
lune 1, 2005 

To be an owner of record, and therefore eligible to  receive the quarterly dividend, shares must have been purchased 
before the ex-dividend date. Owners of any share(s) on or after the ex-dividend date will not receive the dividend for 
that quarter. The previous owner - the owner of record - will receive the dividend. 
Only the Board of Directors may declare dividends and set record dates. Therefore, the payment of  dividends and 
these dates may change a t  the discretion of the Board. Announcement of the dividend declaration is  usually 
published in The Wall Street Journal and several other newspapers. 
Dividends paid on the company's Common Stock are subject to Federal and State income tax. 
Lost Dividend Checks and Stock Certificates 

Dividend checks lost by shareholders, or those that might be lost in the mail, will be replaced upon notification of the 
lost or missing check. All inquiries concerning lost or missing dividend checks should be made to  t h e  Company's 
transfer agent at 800-205-8314. 

Shareholders should call or write the Company's transfer agent t o  report a lost certificate. Appropriate 
documentation will be prepared and sent to the shareholder with instructions. 

Safekeepi na of Stock Certificates 
Under the Direct Stock Purchase Pian, shareholders may have their stock certificates deposited with the transfer agent 
for safekeeping free of charge. Stock certificates and written instructions should be forwarded to: 

EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. 
P.O. Box 43010 
Providence, Rt 02940-3010 



Nicholas DeBenedictis, 58 
Chairman, President & CEO 
Aqua America, Inc. 
Director since 1992 

Mary C. Carroll, 63 
Consultant and 
Community Volunteer 
Director since 1981 

G. Fred DiBona, Jr., 53 
President and CEO 
Independence Blue Cross 
Director since 1993 

Richard Glanton, 57 
Senior Vice President 
Exe I on Corporation 
Director since 1995 

Alan Hirsig, 64 
President and CEO (Retired) 
Arc0 Chemical Company 
Director since 1997 

John F. McCaughan, 68 
Chairman (Retired) 
Bet2 Laboratories, Inc. 
Director since 1984 

John E. Menario, 68 
Assistant to the  President (Retired) 
8anknorth Group, tnc. 
Director since 1999 

Richard L. Smoot, 63 
Regional Chairman, Advisory Board 
(Retired) 
PNC Financial Services Group 
Philadelphia and Southern New Jersey 
Director since 1997 

1 OFFICERS 

Nicholas De Bened ictis, 58 
Chairman, President and CEO 

Richard D. Hugus, 54 
Regional President 
Aqua America - South 

Karl M. Kyriss, 55 
President 
Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc. 

Robert G. Liptak, 56 
Regional President 
Aqua America - North 

Richard R. Riegler, 57 
Senior Vice President 
Engineering and 
E nvi r on menta I Aff a i rs 

David P. Srneltzer, 45 
Senior Vice President 
Finance and CFO 

Roy H. Stahl, Esq., 51 
Executive Vice President, 
General Counsel 
and Corporate Secretary 
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762 W. Lancaster Avenue 
Bryn Mawr, PA 19010 

Kathy 1. Pape 
Vice President, 
Treasurer and Rate Counsel 

T: 610.645.1 142 
F: 610.519.0989 
klpape@aquaarnerica.com 
www.aquaamerica .corn 

October 2 1, 2004 

Ms. Blanca Bayo, Director 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FI 32399-0850 

Re: Docket No. 040952 - WS 
Joint Application €or Approval of the Sale of Florida Water Services 
Land Facilities and Certificates for Chulwota Systems in Seminole 
County to Aqua Utilities, Florida 

Dear Ms& Bay0 

Please be advised that Aqua America, Inc., the parent of Aqua Utilities, Florida, Inc. will 
fund and financially support Aqua Utilities Florida, Inc. to become a self sufficient 
corporation. 

Very truly yours, 

Kathy L. Pape 

KLP/bp 

cc: Patti Daniel 
Kenneth Hoffman, Esq. 


